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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I'm going to

          3  bring this meeting to order. I was joined by John

          4  Liu, from Queens.  My other Committee Members will

          5  be joining -- there is currently a Land Use meeting

          6  going on, as well as other meetings, so I expect my

          7  colleagues shortly.

          8                 We are here today to consider Intro.

          9  418A, the Dignity for All Students Act.  This is a

         10  law that's proposing to deal with a very fundamental

         11  and serious problem, namely, harassment and bullying

         12  that goes on day-in and day-out in our schools.

         13                 We're going to hear from a number of

         14  witnesses, including obviously the Department of

         15  Education on both the nature and extent of the

         16  problem, as well as our legislative solution as one

         17  of several remedies to the problem.

         18                 It has always struck me as

         19  interesting and disappointing that when a member of

         20  the U.S. Senate makes a racist comment, he can be

         21  deposed from that position of leadership, and yet

         22  day-in and day-out, in particular, the LBGT

         23  community is subject to homophobic remarks, and yet

         24  the same public outcry and same public response does

         25  not exist.  We certainly saw with the opening of the
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          2  Hetrick-Martin Institute School that homophobia is

          3  alive and well, and, in my view, the reaction, in

          4  part to the school, was varied justification for it.

          5                 You should be aware that this law,

          6  Dignity for All Students Act, does not merely apply

          7  to the LBGT community, it's about harassment and

          8  bullying of all kinds, and I look forward to the

          9  testimony.

         10                 Before we do so, let me introduce my

         11  other colleagues, Council Member Robert Jackson,

         12  from Manhattan, Council Member Oliver Koppell,

         13  Council Member Mike McMahon, and Council Member,

         14  Chris Quinn, who is not on this Committee, but is a

         15  prime sponsor.

         16                 And Council Member Quinn, if you

         17  would like to say a few words, please do so.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you very

         19  much, Madam Chair.

         20                 The bill we are taking up today,

         21  which has been given a title the Dignity for All

         22  Students Act, is actually a version of a piece of

         23  legislation which has tragically languished in

         24  Albany for a very long time.  And we now have the

         25  opportunity, given mayoral and City control of our

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  schools, to let the New York City public school

          3  system protect its students.  And I think this is a

          4  great day for all of the students in the five

          5  boroughs, that we now, under the leadership of

          6  Chairperson Moskowitz, have the ability to say all

          7  schools should be safe, all students should be free

          8  of harassment.

          9                 One need only open the papers, it

         10  seems on almost any week over the past few months,

         11  and see a story about people being attacked, beaten,

         12  driven out of public playgrounds, graffiti, and

         13  other horrible things done to them because of their

         14  race or their ethnicity, their gender, their sexual

         15  orientation. There is, regardless of what the

         16  statistics may be presented as, there is a crisis, I

         17  believe, of bias in this City. It is important that

         18  we address that bias everywhere that it occurs.  Our

         19  public schools are a place that are, unfortunately,

         20  not free of that bias.  Our public schools are also

         21  a place which provide as an opportunity, a moment

         22  through the educational system, to take steps to

         23  stop that bias from growing within the hearts and

         24  minds of New Yorkers, or minimally, stop it from

         25  stepping over the line into acts of harassment or
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          2  violence.

          3                 I believe this bill will set up

          4  important tracking mechanisms, so we know exactly

          5  what is and isn't happening in our public schools,

          6  because that is the best way to solve any problem,

          7  is to know where they're happening and how they're

          8  happening, and also set up important training

          9  devices to make sure that the staff in our public

         10  schools, themselves, know that bias of any type is

         11  not acceptable and will not be tolerated, and set

         12  that example and send that message.  But also, know

         13  how to deal with bias when it occurs, and set a tone

         14  in our schools, to make sure bias does not occur.

         15                 I mean, recently we saw an attack on

         16  the Upper East Side where a young man was beaten and

         17  called horrible anti gay names.  That cannot happen

         18  in our City, but most importantly, it cannot happen

         19  in our schools, places we send our children to learn

         20  and learn how to become the best they can be.  Being

         21  racist, sexist, homophobic is not the best any New

         22  Yorker can be. This bill will send us down the road

         23  of making sure our schools are making kids the best

         24  they can be, and that we're not tolerating any bias

         25  whatsoever within the walls of our public schools or
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          2  on the playgrounds of our school.

          3                 I want to thank Council Member Gerson

          4  for bringing this bill forward, the coalition that's

          5  worked on the bill and the Chair, for making sure

          6  this bill had a timely hearing in the important

          7  month of October, which includes, among other

          8  things, National Coming Out Day for the lesbian,

          9  gay, bisexual and transgender community, and making

         10  our schools safe is an important part of making sure

         11  people can come out and be who they are throughout

         12  their lives.  So, thank you, Madam Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you,

         14  Council Member Quinn.  Council Member Liu would also

         15  like to briefly speak.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you Madam

         17  Chair.  Well, Council Member Quinn already very

         18  eloquently said everything that I wished to express.

         19    I just wanted to underscore a couple of the items,

         20  which is that there, unfortunately, have been

         21  instances of harassment in our schools.  Whether

         22  they be anti- gay or sexist or racist or anti-

         23  particular ethnic groups.  I am very familiar with

         24  what seems to be a spate of anti- Asian and anti-

         25  immigrant incidents in our high schools, and there
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          2  are growing reports of the incidents happening in

          3  middle schools as well, which is very, very

          4  disturbing.

          5                 It's starting to go into the younger

          6  ages, and I think this is an opportunity for our

          7  City to send a very strong message that our schools

          8  are a place where none of this is -- this is

          9  absolutely not going to be tolerated.  We're not

         10  going to tolerate harassment in any part of our

         11  City, but in our public schools, we do have to send

         12  a very clear message, and state a very clear policy

         13  for the teachers and the administrators, as well as

         14  for the students, the public safety officers and the

         15  parents, that certain things are not going to be

         16  tolerated.  As mentioned by Council Member Quinn,

         17  this bill does also set up a tracking mechanism, so

         18  that we can really begin to measure, and measure

         19  accurately, what is happening in our schools.

         20                 Part of the problems has been that we

         21  don't have a clear way of monitoring these incidents

         22  in a way that allows us to really identify the

         23  problems and come up with the solutions. So, I'm

         24  looking forward to hearing testimony on this bill.

         25  But, I think from the outset, this bill is one that
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          2  makes perfect sense for our City, and ultimately,

          3  for the school kids of our City.  Thank you Madam

          4  Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

          6  Council Member Liu.  We're now going to hear briefly

          7  from the author of this bill, Council Member Alan

          8  Gerson from Manhattan.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

         10  very much Madam Chair.  Let me begin by thanking you

         11  for your leadership and your commitment to tackling

         12  this vexing, but important, issue.  And let me thank

         13  all of my colleagues, those here, those who spoke,

         14  and those who have signed on to the bill.  This has

         15  been a collaborative effort within the City Council

         16  and between the Council and the community from the

         17  organizations whose representatives will testify as

         18  this hearing proceeds.

         19                 Let me just, very, very, very briefly

         20  address the crux of the bill and what we aim to

         21  accomplish.  And let me begin by making clear what

         22  DASA, the Dignity in All Schools Act, is not, and

         23  what it does not do.  We should be clear that DASA

         24  does not, in any way, aim or inhibit free expression

         25  or openness of expression.  It does not outlaw sick
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          2  humor or dirty jokes or foul language.  It does not

          3  prescribe the spontaneous outburst or good- natured

          4  or even ill- natured occasional teasing or ribbing.

          5  DASA does not, in any way, impose standards of

          6  political correctness, or as I said, in any way

          7  inhibit free expression on any subject.  It does not

          8  seek, in any way, and in fact, does not inhibit or

          9  reign in the rambunctiousness, abrasiveness,

         10  openness or even the freshness of youth.

         11                 DASA targets conduct and one type of

         12  conduct only. It is called bullying.  It is defined

         13  as the repeated and targeted verbal or physical

         14  abuse of any individual student by any other

         15  individual or groups of individuals.  That's what

         16  this Act does.

         17                 For too many students in New York

         18  City, the key challenge in going to school is not

         19  mastering math or language or science or any

         20  subject, but for far too many students, the key

         21  challenge is simple survival.  Survival with their

         22  dignity and their self- esteem intact.  For too many

         23  young people, going to school means going through a

         24  constant, daily dehumanizing gauntlet of taunting

         25  and teasing, of punching and pushing, or worse.  For
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          2  too many young people, the pecking order, who picks

          3  on who, defines the culture of growing up.

          4                 We all know what happens, some kids

          5  are picked upon because they're gay or lesbian or

          6  perceived to be gay or lesbian, because they're fat

          7  or short, because of their race or religion, or

          8  because they just don't fit in or because they're

          9  unpopular.  DASA targets not the reason, but the

         10  conduct of bullying for any reason.

         11                 This Act upholds and seeks to

         12  implement, as my colleagues have mentioned,

         13  procedures and programs that will assure that all

         14  young people, of all sexual orientations, races,

         15  religions, backgrounds, and all situations and all

         16  characteristics, that all young people remain

         17  entitled to safety and dignity in the places they

         18  are required to gather, supposedly under adult

         19  protection and supervision.

         20                 Too often the victims of the pecking

         21  order find their youthful energies thoroughly

         22  consumed by the constant battle to preserve their

         23  persons or their personas, sad and depressing days

         24  replace what should be happy days.  In many cases,

         25  bullying stymies education development and stunts
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          2  emotional growth.  In extreme, but all too common,

          3  cases many young people seek a way out in suicide or

          4  in desperate horrific acts of violence of revenge,

          5  as the nation saw not too long ago in Columbine.

          6                 The pecking order also victimizes the

          7  aggressors, by letting them get away with it.  It

          8  stunts their emotional development, teaching them to

          9  become adults who are abusers, rather than loving,

         10  caring human beings.  And, indeed, when nothing is

         11  done, it victimizes all young people, by teaching

         12  them a world, a warped world view of human dynamics.

         13    You will hear Madam Chair in this hearing, many

         14  witnesses who have lived through this, who have

         15  witnessed this, experts who have studied this, who

         16  will testify and make clear the agony and the horror

         17  which bullying extracts and causes, and the

         18  difficulties in stymied growth, which it extracts on

         19  too many young people.

         20                 We have known this.  We know this.

         21  We have know this for far too long, yet I'll

         22  conclude by pointing out that too many adults still

         23  persist in throwing up their hands and saying, well,

         24  this is just the way it is.  This is just the way it

         25  is. I'll never forget a principal, who, by all
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          2  accounts, was in every other way an outstanding

          3  principal, how she responded to a situation in her

          4  middle school, by saying, well, in this age group,

          5  there are the bullies and the bullied, and that's

          6  just the way it is.

          7                 Well, DASA makes it clear that that's

          8  not the way it has to be.  That that is not the way

          9  it should be, and not the way it will be.  When we

         10  enact this bill, we will make to all the teachers

         11  and the administrators who try to intervene and try

         12  to deal with these situations, we will make it

         13  possible, by giving them the resources and the

         14  support which they have lacked for too long.  And,

         15  to all the young people who are victimized, who

         16  wonder day- in/day- out, how the adult world can

         17  allow these situations to persist day- in and day-

         18  out, DASA will say, we care and we will be there and

         19  we will protect and we will provide a nurturing

         20  environment to each and every young person.

         21                 You know, truly, in conclusion, there

         22  is a broader issue, the existentialist philosopher,

         23  Jean-Paul Sartre (phonetic), pointed out in his

         24  work, Anti-Semitism in Jew, that if the Jew did not

         25  exist, the world would invent him.  And the meaning
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          2  of that means that for too much of the world, people

          3  must find their meaning and their reason for

          4  existence by oppressing and putting down others.

          5  Well, this phenomena, which really, I think, is the

          6  crux of the human, of the negative aspects of the

          7  human condition for throughout the ages, finds its

          8  roots too often in the classroom, where kids are

          9  learned to either be bullies or to be bullied.

         10                 We, with this bill, are saying that

         11  in the City of New York, that is not acceptable, we

         12  will not tolerate it, and by enacting and

         13  implementing this bill, we will save lives, we will

         14  make the lives of countless young people happier and

         15  better, more just and more humane, and I believe, we

         16  will pave the way for a more just and more humane

         17  future and society.  I look forward to the hearing,

         18  and most importantly, I look forward to getting the

         19  job done.  Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         21  Council Member Gerson.  We are joined by Ben Tucker,

         22  Chief Executive, Office of School Safety and

         23  Planning, and Mr. Steve Allinger.  I don't know if

         24  you're both testifying or just Mr. Tucker.  Welcome,

         25  and please state your name for the record and begin.
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          2                 MR. TUCKER:  Thank you, good morning.

          3    I'll be testifying alone this morning.  Steve is

          4  my side- kick for this. Good morning Madam Chair,

          5  and Members, Chairwoman and Members of the Education

          6  Committee.  My name is Ben Tucker.  I'm the Chief

          7  Executive to the Office of School Safety and

          8  Planning for the New York City Department of

          9  Education.  I appear before you this morning to

         10  offer comment on Intro. 418, the local law proposed

         11  to amend the administrative code of the City of New

         12  York, in relation to prohibiting harassment at New

         13  York City schools.

         14                 The New York City public school

         15  system has the most ethnically and culturally

         16  diverse student population in the nation.  In

         17  celebration of this fact, the Department embraces

         18  and promotes the cultural diversity among students

         19  and staff. Indeed, it is the policy of the

         20  Department to provide educational and employment

         21  opportunities with regard to race, color, religion,

         22  creed, ethnic, ethnicity, national origin, alienage

         23  and citizenship status, age, marital status,

         24  disability, sexual orientation, gender, prior record

         25  of arrest, conviction, or conviction, and to
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          2  maintain an environment free of unlawful harassment,

          3  sexual harassment, and retaliation for individuals

          4  who use these procedures for filing a complaint.

          5                 Recognizing its large and diverse

          6  student population, the Department has long-

          7  standing policies prohibiting harassment and

          8  discrimination on the basis of the protected classes

          9  cited above.

         10                 In 1985, the Department of Education

         11  adopted a policy, directing the Chancellor to take

         12  steps to eliminate practices which foster attitudes

         13  and/or actions leading to discrimination against

         14  students, parents or school personnel on the basis

         15  of race, color, religion, national origin, gender,

         16  age, sexual orientation and/or handicapping

         17  condition.

         18                 In 1993, the Board adopted a policy

         19  against bias and discrimination in all facilities,

         20  and at all levels of the New York City Department of

         21  Education, affirming its policy against harassment,

         22  discrimination and bigotry.

         23                 Our commitment to reducing or

         24  eliminating discriminatory practices and harassment

         25  remains a priority and is consistent with our
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          2  efforts to ensure compliance with all Federal, State

          3  and local City laws, and City laws.  This is

          4  demonstrated in the relevant enforcement policies

          5  outlined in Chancellor Regulations and Personnel

          6  Memoranda governing such areas as procedures for

          7  filing complaints of alleged discrimination and

          8  harassment, student- to- student sexual harassment,

          9  student discipline procedures and reasonable

         10  accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities

         11  Act.

         12                 Additionally, the City- wide

         13  standards of discipline and intervention measures,

         14  also know as the discipline code, provides notice to

         15  students and parents of the standards of behavior

         16  with which all students are expected to comply, by

         17  outlining prohibited conduct and the range of

         18  permissible disciplinary measures for such conduct.

         19                 Consistent with the intent of the

         20  proposed legislation to prohibit harassment, the

         21  discipline code specifically prohibits such behavior

         22  as engaging in sexual harassment, engaging in

         23  intimidating and bullying behavior to compel a

         24  student or staff member to do something, engaging in

         25  verbal or physical conduct that threatens another
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          2  with harm, including intimidation through the use of

          3  epithets or slurs involving race, ethnicity,

          4  national origin, religion, religious practices,

          5  gender sexual orientation or disability, and in

          6  engaging in physical sexual aggression or compelling

          7  or forcing another to engage in sexual activity.

          8                 At the same time, the Department's

          9  Office of Equal Opportunity provides training for

         10  teachers, staff, students and parents on such topics

         11  as sexual harassment, tolerance and work place

         12  disharmony.  Moreover, the Department produces and

         13  distributes a variety of written materials for use

         14  by teachers and students to address sexual

         15  harassment, resolving conflict, bullying and

         16  violence prevention.

         17                 We believe that our existing policies

         18  effectively address the conduct the proposed law

         19  seeks to remedy.  According to the New York Police

         20  Department records for the academic year, July 2001

         21  through June 2002, there were only 12 incidents

         22  reported compared with 16 incidents reported for the

         23  period July 1, 2002 through June  '03.  In response

         24  to the increase in the number of criminal incidents

         25  over this two year period, we will review additional
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          2  police department data to determine if there is any

          3  type of trend.

          4                 The City Council's proposed Dignity

          5  for All Students Act, which would prohibit acts of

          6  harassment in New York City public schools mirrors

          7  the intent of the New York City Department of

          8  Education's anti- discrimination and harassment

          9  policies.

         10                 In fact, the Department and the

         11  Office of the Mayor have supported State

         12  legislation, State legislation of the same title,

         13  sponsored by Assemblyman Steve Sanders and Senator

         14  Thomas Duane.  The Department believes the

         15  appropriate avenue for securing strengthened anti-

         16  discrimination legislation for schools is through

         17  amendment of the State Education Law.  Section 2101-

         18  2801, of the Education Law, currently governs codes

         19  of conduct that are required in all public schools

         20  throughout the State and would preempt local laws

         21  related to these matters.

         22                 In addition, the Department has

         23  concerns about the implementation and monitoring of

         24  the proposed Act.  The language of the bill does not

         25  clearly define whether the Act applies to students
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          2  or students and staff, and in what circumstances.

          3  Language that is overly general, such as references

          4  to harassment based on school performance or other

          5  characteristic or reason that may not be apparent,

          6  opens the door to misunderstanding and confusion in

          7  the application of the law.

          8                 There are other concerns as well.

          9  Chief among them are the enforcement and burdensome

         10  reporting requirements that principals would have to

         11  shoulder without any additional support.  Principals

         12  would be required to enforce policies and guidelines

         13  and be designated the person to receive incident

         14  reports completed for each event.

         15                 Nevertheless, the goals and

         16  objectives of the proposed State and City

         17  legislation reflect the same values promoted by the

         18  New York City Department of Education.  Thus, we

         19  stand ready to work with the sponsors of the City

         20  Council proposed, proposal to identify additional

         21  measures that could be undertaken to strengthen

         22  anti- harassment discrimination policies and

         23  practice, practices.  Thank you and I'd be happy to

         24  take questions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Tucker.  Let me begin, and maybe Mr. Allinger

          3  can help out here.  I have here a letter of

          4  September 23rd, that the Committee sent to the

          5  Department of Education, asking for information

          6  related to this hearing.  As we always do, the

          7  Committee, in advance, sends over a list of

          8  questions.  Is it accurate to say that of these

          9  questions, we got one answer, which is that there

         10  were 12 bias incidents in the  '01  '02 and 16 for

         11  2002/2003?  If you could turn the mic on and just

         12  state your name for the record.

         13                 MR. ALLINGER:  I got faked out by

         14  that light. Sorry.  We're continuing to review

         15  information on incidents and yes, we have furnished

         16  in this testimony information pertaining to the

         17  number of criminal bias incidents, which you

         18  accurately --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- So is that

         20  a yes? --

         21                 MR. ALLINGER:  -- Restated.  Yes, we

         22   --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- So, there

         24  was one piece of information that you provided to

         25  the Committee in advance, in response to this list
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          2  of questions?

          3                 MR. ALLINGER:  That's correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.  And

          5  would you -- you have a lot of experience Steve, in

          6  my list of questions, does the Committee usually

          7  provide a longer set of questions?  This is short by

          8  our usual set of questions.

          9                 MR. ALLINGER:  We've been working on

         10  a range of questions and issues at the behest of the

         11  Committee.  This is one among many issues that we're

         12  gathering information on, and we will continue to

         13  analyze data internally and furnish it as quickly as

         14  we can.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Yes, it is

         16  one of many, because we have many hearings and we

         17  have many children and many teachers, and we have to

         18  do many oversight hearings.  So, yes.

         19                 I just want to make sure that

         20  everyone knows, for the record, that we submitted

         21  this September 23rd, and we got one answer to a

         22  rather short list of questions, and I would ask that

         23  you take that to the Chancellor.  That we can't do

         24  the kind of oversight we need to do with that kind

         25  of response.  And I thought we were moving forward
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          2  in this information game, this war of information.

          3                 In order to do our job, we need

          4  information in advance, and we show you the courtesy

          5  by giving you the questions in advance.  In this

          6  case, four weeks, close to three weeks in advance,

          7  and I, we need the information in advance.  But,

          8  let's get to the substance of the questions.

          9                 Mr. Tucker, you mention that the

         10  Department produces and distributes a variety of

         11  written materials for use by teachers and students,

         12  to address, among other things, bullying.  Could I

         13  see copies of those?  Do we have copies of those?

         14  What those materials are?  Because that's just the

         15  type of thing that would be very, very helpful for

         16  this kind of hearing, and in the questions, we asked

         17  how do you propose to deal with this problem, both

         18  via the law and any other mechanisms, and it sounds

         19  like you have some materials.

         20                 MR. TUCKER:  Yea, we do.  There are a

         21  number of different materials that I can provide.  I

         22  don't have them here, but can produce them, even

         23  right after the hearing, immediately following the

         24  hearing.  But they are a variety of training tools

         25  used by and distributed throughout the system to be
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          2  used by teachers for age appropriate levels of the

          3  Department, focusing on a range of issues, many of

          4  which are addressed in both the proposed

          5  legislation, as well as things that I commented on

          6  in my testimony.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  All right.

          8  If we could get copies of those materials, and some

          9  information about how they are distributed --

         10                 MR. TUCKER:  -- Sure --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- That would

         12  be helpful. Going back to the number of incidences.

         13  You say that there are- we went from 12 to 16 bias

         14  incidences.  Would you agree that many incidences,

         15  which are characterized as bullying, would not be

         16  reported as "bias incidences?"

         17                 MR. TUCKER:  Yea, I think that's a

         18  fair statement. I think that's true.  That's been

         19  true for years.  I think that continues to be the

         20  history.  I mean, for -- I mean I was, as you may

         21  know, I was a police officer for many years, and

         22  even at that time, in the 70's in particular, we

         23  focused on lots of incidents and responded to a

         24  number of incidents that were, while the conduct

         25  itself, you know, resulted in an injury, perhaps, or
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          2  an assault, which we, is the way we classified it,

          3  the underlying cause is really what the motivation

          4  for that, it was not necessarily clear all the time.

          5    And I think the same thing is true today.  We do

          6   --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Now, how

          8  do you assess, since it appears as if the DOE has no

          9  information on this, how widespread a problem this

         10  is?

         11                 MR. TUCKER:  Difficult to know how

         12  widespread it is, but the research that's out there

         13  suggests that, depending on where you are in the

         14  country, that it is pretty widespread.  We take it

         15  seriously.  There's no question, that, I mean,

         16  there's no question that we believe bullying takes

         17  place in the schools, and as incidents occur,

         18  sometimes it's clear -- the data that I cited by the

         19  way, is police department data.  But, we also

         20  collect other incidents as well, and we are in the

         21  process of putting together, and I referenced this

         22  at my, at the last hearing, a system that will

         23  capture the nature of specific types of events in

         24  school buildings, to give us a better handle on how

         25  we keep track of the nature of what's going on.

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 So, what we will be able to, I think,

          3  get a better handle on, on what number of incidents

          4  are related to within the scope of harassment or

          5  intimidation, which we now capture in the aggregate.

          6    We'll be able to break that down and be able to

          7  understand within those contexts, whether or not it

          8  was a bullying incident, or whether it was something

          9  else.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  That seems to

         11  presume that it will be reported.  If you create

         12  some sort of tracking system. I mean, is it really

         13  in everyone's interest to report that you've had,

         14  you know, 15 incidences this month of bullying at

         15  your school?

         16                 MR. TUCKER:  Well, it's clearly in

         17  everyone's interest to report that.  There are

         18  requirements that they be reported.  One would hope

         19  that certainly victims and that's, I think, a

         20  challenge to get victims to recognize that if they

         21  seek help, if they report it and seek help, that

         22  something can be done.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, how would

         24  a student know that, how are they going to find out

         25  that they can report bullying?  That's just not
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          2  something, you know, my own experience of this in

          3  the 1970's, was actually being taunted because I was

          4  white, and it would never have occurred to me, as a

          5  kid, that I could go to someone, you know, I thought

          6  you had to sort of practice boxing, that that was

          7  the, you know, response, to not get beat up.  That

          8  that was sort of -- it would not have occurred to me

          9  as a kid to report it to someone.  So, how would you

         10  communicate that information to students, that

         11  that's some sort of legal category that they can now

         12  access?

         13                 MR. TUCKER:  Well, it's not so much

         14  you -- kids are told in a number of different ways,

         15  based on the, one way is through the material that I

         16  referenced earlier, in class sessions, classroom

         17  sessions, and such.  But, also, at the beginning of

         18  the year, as you know, we provide information about

         19  the code of conduct and the Student Bill of Rights

         20  and that's about to go out to, the new code is about

         21  to be distributed. And, within the code, it makes it

         22  very clear what the conduct is that's prohibited.

         23  It describes the nature of the conduct and also the

         24  sanctions.

         25                 So, we try to make it clear that, to
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          2  students, that they don't have to remain victims,

          3  that they can go for help, and they, and we try to

          4  get the word out as to who they can see in order to

          5  get that assistance.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And do you

          7  have, sort of, faith that somehow a disciplinary

          8  code, because you put something in there, that sort

          9  of that makes a practical difference in terms of

         10  school culture?

         11                 MR. TUCKER:  Well, one would hope

         12  that it does.  I mean, the whole purpose for putting

         13  out the code is to help, at least draw some

         14  particular parameters for what is accepted behavior

         15  and standards for that behavior.  So, so yes, I

         16  think, as a foundation, that's absolutely true.

         17                 What you, as you may recall, when we

         18  talked about this at the last hearing, the way we're

         19  distributing the code is not simply just to hand it

         20  to students and their parents and teachers and say,

         21  take it home and look at it.  But, rather to do so

         22  and then have some discussion in classes with using

         23  lesson plans that try to underscore and highlight at

         24  least, for students, the nature of the kind of

         25  conduct that we reference in the code.  And, to then
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          2  work through those scenarios, so that students have

          3  an understanding of what the implications are for

          4  their behavior, for their conduct and also what kind

          5  of supports they can seek if they believe they need

          6  help as victims.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  It just would

          8  seem that pieces of paper are very different from a

          9  school culture that is not the wild west, and we

         10  have a very long ways to go, and you have the added

         11  problem that some kinds of bullying are accepted by

         12  adults, and that creates a more fundamental problem.

         13    Do you have any views on how you prevent that?

         14  Because if it's accepted by adults, then students

         15  don't even have adult figures to go to, who are

         16  necessarily going to enforce the so- called

         17  disciplinary code.

         18                 MR. TUCKER:  Yea, I mean, I think, I

         19  mean I don't want to just hold out the code as the

         20  only vehicle through which this information gets

         21  distributed.  I think, just an observation, you

         22  know, we're focused on as part of the Children First

         23  Initiative, the notion of youth engagement and

         24  providing supports.  And so, as part of the youth

         25  development and youth and family services unit,
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          2  where we focus on health as well as safety, one of

          3  the things that we're spending some time doing,

          4  serious amount of time on, is how we provide support

          5  to students who are having difficulties.

          6                 And very often, those difficulties

          7  don't manifest, they manifest themselves in ways

          8  that, as you, as the students begin to engage in

          9  discussions with guidance counselors and social

         10  workers, teacher begin to pay attention to the fact

         11  that a student in his or her classroom is not

         12  performing in the way that they are used to, or as

         13  they get to know them, that somehow, something has

         14  changed.  We're encouraging, at every level,

         15  teachers and administrators within school buildings

         16  to pay attention to the notion that, the fact that,

         17  the fact that the child might be acting out or may

         18  not be performing, may have some, it may be some

         19  reasons for that underlying, underlying reasons for

         20  that.

         21                 And in many cases, it may be related

         22  to the way they're being treated, it may be related

         23  to bullying or some conduct like that.  So, I think

         24  the focus has to be on sort of recognizing that, and

         25  as you dig deeper into why a child is not
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          2  performing, or why they're acting in a particular

          3  way, that's a change from what the teacher may be

          4  used to, or that the parent may be used to, it's

          5  important to recognize it, number one, identify that

          6  as a problem, and then, number two, to begin to look

          7  at and talk with the child about the reasons for

          8  that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I certainly

         10  appreciate your kind of holistic approach to

         11  students, and obviously, in an ideal scenario, those

         12  conversations would be having.  But, you know, given

         13  that we have one guidance counselor for a thousand

         14  kids, it just seems like we're very, very far from

         15  achieving that more holistic approach to children.

         16  But, let me just go back to the quantity question,

         17  because I'm not sure I completely understand your

         18  perspective.  Is it accurate to say that we, today,

         19  have no idea how common bullying is?  Or we do have

         20  some idea?  Is that --

         21                 MR. TUCKER:  -- I --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- I mean

         23  quantitatively, is --

         24                 MR. TUCKER:  -- I mean, I think

         25  there's a recognition, as I, you know that bullying
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          2  exists.  In terms of the scope of it, I'm not sure

          3  we, I'm not sure anyone knows.  I mean, there's, I

          4  think there's some recognition clearly that there's

          5  something going on out there that involves our kids,

          6  and the way they interact with each other, and that

          7  clearly relates to the kinds of things that we, that

          8  are defined within the context of what we call

          9  bullying.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  It would just

         11  seem that if we don't have any sense of how

         12  widespread, I mean, are we talking one incident a

         13  week?  Are we talking ten incidences a week? And are

         14  we talking about different amounts of bullying at

         15  different schools?  Presumably, there's a

         16  difference.  If we don't have any idea, it seems

         17  that it would be hard to formulate a solution to

         18  this problem.  And, I guess it doesn't give me a

         19  great deal of confidence, if the DOE is committed to

         20  addressing the problem of bullying, and yet it

         21  doesn't have even the most basic road map.

         22                 And, I'm not saying that it's so easy

         23  to get a handle on, because students may not be

         24  reporting it, principals may not want to report it.

         25  How do we know that the various things you're doing
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          2  are going to be effective if we don't have any

          3  quantitative information about how common bullying

          4  is, and at what schools it's more of a problem or

          5  less of a problem and what the nature of the

          6  bullying is?  We don't know if it's oriented more

          7  against one group of students, you know, versus

          8  another group.  How do we, how can we have any

          9  confidence that the measures you've cited are

         10  addressing the problem?

         11                 MR. TUCKER:  Well, I mean, I think we

         12  have a number of vehicles for doing that.  I mean,

         13  we, as I, I referenced the code and some of the

         14  results, some of the things that result from the

         15  application of the code and the conduct are

         16  suspensions and those kinds of things, where kids

         17  are taken to task for their behavior and their

         18  conduct.  So, one measure of how you get a handle on

         19  what's going on is through that suspension process,

         20  through the conference process that's part of that,

         21  depending on the nature of the suspension, through

         22  the deans who interact with youngsters all the time

         23  in school buildings.  So, there are a number of

         24  ways, as I said before, at getting at that.  I

         25  think, I think it is important to understand that,
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          2  that the holistic, the comprehensive approach to

          3  understanding the nature of what goes on in school

          4  buildings has to be taken into account when you're

          5  trying to understand the issue of bullying, as well

          6  as any other type of conduct that takes place.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I'm going to

          8  turn the microphone over to my colleagues, Council

          9  Member Chris Quinn, and then Council Member Liu and

         10  Koppell.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         12  Just, first, I just want to note in the list of

         13  categories that you mentioned Mr. Tucker, in groups

         14  that are to be protected or not harassed, et cetera,

         15  you did mention sexual orientation and gender, but

         16  you omitted gender identity and gender expression,

         17  which are now fully parts of the New York City Human

         18  Rights Law, a law passed by the City Council and

         19  signed by Mayor Bloomberg, so I think it is an

         20  indication of the need of this law alone, that the

         21  Department of Education did not fully delineate all

         22  of the categories of New Yorkers who are to be

         23  protected in their testimony before us about bias

         24  and harassment today.

         25                 So, let me start off by asking you
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          2  the question, are the categories of people, students

          3  and teachers who are not to be bullied, harassed, et

          4  cetera, within our schools, do those categories come

          5  from the New York City's Human Rights Law?

          6                 MR. TUCKER:  Yes.

          7                 MR. ALLINGER:  Yes, we're aware of

          8  the City Council local law that was signed by Mayor

          9  Bloomberg.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So, it was

         11  just a typographical --

         12                 MR. TUCKER:  -- Oversight --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  -- Omission

         14  that gender identity and gender expression were left

         15  out?

         16                 MR. TUCKER:  That's correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Do the

         18  materials which the Chair requested include all of

         19  the categories in the law?  And have they been

         20  updated since the law, the City's Human Rights Law

         21  was updated?

         22                 MR. TUCKER:  We'd have to look at the

         23  materials. I'm not sure that they have been.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  That's

         25  shocking.  I mean, that is, I'm really shocked, and
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          2  I did not expect that today. That the Department of

          3  Ed wouldn't have, I mean, it calls into questions

          4  whether every City agency has failed to update

          5  materials based on, not just this law, but any laws

          6  that are passed by the City Council.  But I'm just

          7  really shocked that the Department of Ed, who is

          8  sitting before us today, saying that you're very

          9  committed to ending bullying and harassment, but you

         10  didn't respond to a law passed by the Council and

         11  signed by the Mayor, which is exclusively focused at

         12  preventing discrimination, intimidation and bias.

         13  Why wouldn't you have immediately updated your

         14  materials on reprint? And why don't you know whether

         15  your materials are in compliance with the New York

         16  City laws?

         17                 MR. ALLINGER:  Councilwoman Quinn, we

         18  are updating the discipline code and we will produce

         19  new materials that will have an explicit provision

         20  on bullying and reflect the Human Rights Law of the

         21  City and State, and Federal laws as well.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But, a school

         23  year has started and begun since that law was

         24  passed.  I mean, if this was three months after the

         25  law, and you didn't update the materials, I would,
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          2  you know, that would be, you know, all right, you

          3  wanted to get rid of what you had, so to speak.

          4  But, the school year has begun.

          5                 MR. ALLINGER:  I would add that the

          6  discrimination of any type is prohibited by the

          7  Department and by the City's Human Rights Laws, and

          8  there is no tolerance for any kind of threatening or

          9  bullying behavior in this code.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Yet, if you

         11  hand me the materials you say you give out, and I

         12  look through the list, I'm specifically going to see

         13  that gender identity and gender expression are not

         14  in there.  So, there is nothing that is going to

         15  compel me if I am going to read this, and then act

         16  appropriately, there's nothing that is going to

         17  compel me not to pick on, make fun or harass the

         18  transgender kid whose next to me in class, nothing.

         19  Could you have given me something that states its

         20  the code of conduct and left that out.

         21                 MR. ALLINGER:  That would be a form

         22  of bullying, which isn't tolerated in our code.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I, you know

         24  what? It is just totally unacceptable that City

         25  Council and the Mayor took steps to protect people
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          2  who, based on gender identity and gender expression,

          3  and that the school system wouldn't have immediately

          4  responded to that, in all of their materials, and in

          5  all of their testimony on issues like this.  I just

          6  think it's completely unacceptable.  I underscore

          7  the Chair's request for the materials and if it's

          8  not in there, which I hope it is, they need to be

          9  redone immediately, to be in full compliance of the

         10  law.  It's just unacceptable.

         11                 In your testimony you mention, and in

         12  response to the Chair's questions, that there were

         13  12 incidents.  Is that correct?

         14                 MR. TUCKER:  That's correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And those are

         16  crime stats, I assume, from the Hate Crimes Task

         17  Force?

         18                 MR. TUCKER:  That's correct --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  -- But not all

         20   --

         21                 MR. TUCKER: -- The Bias Unit --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  -- I'm sorry,

         23  what?

         24                 MR. TUCKER:  Hate Crimes Unit of the

         25  NYPD.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right.

          3                 MR. TUCKER:  Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Not all types

          5  of bullying, which are and should be unacceptable in

          6  our public school system, are technically crimes, as

          7  defined by the New York Police Department.  So, that

          8  number catches crimes, but in no way do I think it

          9  captures everything that we would consider bullying

         10  or inappropriate.  So first, let me ask, are the

         11  only things that you consider to be against the code

         12  of conduct, as it relates to bullying and harassment

         13  and discriminatory behavior, acts which rise to a

         14  crime category, as defined by the NYPD?

         15                 MR. TUCKER:  No.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER TUCKER:  So, then,

         17  that number really, does not reflect what actually

         18  happens in our schools?

         19                 MR. TUCKER:  No it doesn't.  Not the

         20  full scope, no.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  How long do

         22  you think it will take the Department before you

         23  know exactly how many incidents have occurred in the

         24  school?

         25                 MR. TUCKER:  In this context of
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          2  bullying?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  In the broader

          4  context of bullying.

          5                 MR. TUCKER:  Yea, we carry, we

          6  collect that data now.  We collect it in the

          7  aggregates, so it's not broken down, by specific

          8  category, in terms of the nature of the event.

          9                 One of the things that I mentioned

         10  earlier is that we're in the process of putting

         11  together a system that will allow us to do exactly

         12  that, that it would go in and look various

         13  databases, from all the data that we collect,

         14  including the incidents that are non- criminal in

         15  nature, and give us the ability to track those.  We

         16  are in the process of developing that.  We'll have

         17  that system in place within a few months.

         18                 Right now, the only way we would be

         19  able to capture that would be a hand count, or go in

         20  to do a review of each of the respective records in

         21  order to pull that information.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  What's the

         23  overall number? You said you had the overall number,

         24  you just don't have it broken down by say, you know,

         25  racist incident, sexist incident --
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          2                 MR. TUCKER:  -- Well, we have it

          3  broken down by harassment, we have it broken down by

          4  intimidation and coercion, and I could give you, I

          5  don't have that number with me, but I can give you

          6  the total of those numbers.

          7                 The only reason I'm hesitant, because

          8  you'd have to go in and look at those categories and

          9  determine whether some of those are within the scope

         10  of what we would call bullying and some are not.

         11  So, harassment has a much broader context than just

         12  simply the kind of conduct we're talking about.  We

         13  also look at sexual harassment, we also look at, as

         14  I said, intimidation and coercion.  So, we'd have to

         15  really, I think, look at it very, much more closely

         16  than we have, in order to determine what fits and

         17  what doesn't.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I think the

         19  fact that we're months away from that system, and

         20  that you can't, don't even know easily, without

         21  doing it by hand in the 21st Century, the

         22  distinction between what's harassment that is in the

         23  category of the Dignity for All Students Act, and

         24  which is other types of harassment, is an indication

         25  of us needing to institute, through law, a system
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          2  which will make that information easily accessible

          3  to law makers and parents and students.

          4                 But, since you're a few months away

          5  from setting up such type of a system, why do you

          6  then oppose having a system where principals would

          7  be the ones who receive the complaints and have, you

          8  know, overseeing the paperwork, et cetera?  It may

          9  be that the paperwork in the DASA bill is overly

         10  burdensome, and certainly details like that could,

         11  of course, be worked out through discussion and a

         12  legislative process.  But, if you're moving to that,

         13  because through your own admission, you need a

         14  system, why, in your second to last paragraph, do

         15  you seem to oppose having a system of tracking?

         16                 MR. ALLINGER:  I don't think --

         17                 MR. TUCKER:  -- Yea, I don't oppose,

         18  I mean, that's just the opposite of what we are

         19  proposing.  I mean, we are intending to track.  We

         20  think it's important to track and monitor.  So, I'm

         21  not taking any opposition to tracking and

         22  monitoring.  It may be, the reference is to, if its

         23  to principals, as it is, really, relates to whether

         24  or not the principals are the ones that have to sort

         25  of do that, be the principals for that process.

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Who should it

          3  be, then if it's not the principal? Which makes

          4  sense to me, as the person in charge of the school,

          5  who should it be?  Who keeps that data?

          6                 MR. TUCKER:  Well, I don't know --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  -- Or receives

          8  the reports, et cetera --

          9                 MR. TUCKER:  Yea, I mean --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  -- Not keeps

         11  the data.

         12                 MR. TUCKER:  I think we could talk

         13  about who that should be.  I'm not, you know, I'm

         14  not sure who that person could be.  But, it doesn't

         15  necessarily have to be the principal, per se.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Well, but, so

         17  you don't, you're not opposed to it being the

         18  principal, you're just not sure it should be --

         19                 MR. TUCKER:  -- Well I --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  -- Because I

         21  read this as an opposition to it being the

         22  principal.

         23                 MR. TUCKER:  Well, we're opposed to

         24  it being the principal if this is, if it's another

         25  responsibility that the principal has to have.
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          2  We're trying to get principals, as you know, to

          3  focus on the educational piece and managing the

          4  building, in particular, and focus on instruction.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I think making

          6  sure a building is free of bias and harassment and

          7  violence is a cornerstone of managing a building,

          8  and a cornerstone of making it a place where

          9  students can learn.

         10                 MR. TUCKER:  I agree with you.  No

         11  question about it.  All I'm simply saying is that it

         12  doesn't necessarily have to, for that to take place,

         13  doesn't necessarily have to rest in the hands of the

         14  principal.  That's all I'm saying.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Well, we look

         16  forward to hearing, who in the school, in the

         17  building, you think could do it better?  I think

         18  it's the principal, but obviously.

         19                 And, just my last question, which is

         20  maybe a question or more of an observation.  I found

         21  it odd that on page four of your testimony, where

         22  you support the State Dignity for All Students Act,

         23  which this bill is very much modeled on,  I found it

         24  odd that the Bloomberg Administration, which fought

         25  so hard and so successfully to its credit to get
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          2  mayoral control, and won mayoral control, when many

          3  before Mayor Bloomberg had failed, would come before

          4  us today and say that the State is better able to

          5  protect our students, and that it is the State who

          6  should make sure schools are free of harassment and

          7  not the City itself.

          8                 And, maybe, you know, that your issue

          9  is that technically, Section 2801 says x, but this

         10  is an Administration who saw what the State version

         11  of Section everything and the other thing said, and

         12  said we're going go change that Section. So, it

         13  seems to me that it's ironic that this would not be

         14  a place where you would want to challenge the

         15  State's power, and would not want to make sure that

         16  the City was the one who could set the standard for

         17  schools free of harassment.

         18                 MR. ALLINGER:  The testimony points

         19  out that the State now controls that policy through

         20  Section 2801, and we're making an observation that

         21  to strengthen protection of children in schools,

         22  that it's necessary to amend Section 2801, as

         23  Senator Duane's legislation would accomplish, along

         24  with Assemblyman Sanders.

         25                 And, Mayor Bloomberg and Chancellor
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          2  Klein have strongly supported the Dignity for All

          3  Students Act in Albany. For three straight years

          4  we've supported it, we've memo'd on it and we've

          5  worked with the sponsors of the legislation.  What

          6  we're pointing out is that it's important to

          7  recognize that the State law controls in some of

          8  these matters, expressly authorizes Boards of

          9  Education across the State, the Chancellor, in

         10  particular, and community school boards and their

         11  successors, in terms of additional policies, and we,

         12  of course, would work with you, and do want to

         13  change the laws pertaining these matters.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But, I don't

         15  see that that's what you said.  I see what you said

         16  as saying, this is better left to the State, which I

         17  really think is surprising, given Mayor Bloomberg's

         18  track record on that.

         19                 And you know, at another point, I

         20  would love to hear detail about the things that the

         21  Bloomberg Administration has done to pass the

         22  Dignity for All Students Act, because I actually

         23  know Senator Duane fairly well, he was my

         24  predecessor in this seat, and I have, he has never

         25  mentioned to me that he's met with the Bloomberg
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          2  Administration about the Dignity for All Students

          3  Act, and I have never heard of it being an active

          4  part of Mayor Bloomberg's Albany Legislative Agenda.

          5                 I hope I'm wrong, and I look forward

          6  to seeing the dates and times that those meetings

          7  and strategy sessions occurred.  But, until we're

          8  able to pass that bill, I think we should push the

          9  envelope as far as we can in the City of New York,

         10  and a version of this Bill is the right way to do

         11  that. Thank you, and just lastly, I want to thank

         12  Mr. Tucker for his help with the Hetrick- Martin

         13  Institute and the Harvey Milk School and the ongoing

         14  harassment that they have been receiving.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         16  Council Member Quinn.  Council Member Liu, Koppell,

         17  and then McMahon.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you Madam

         19  Chair.  I will try to be brief.  I have two areas of

         20  questions that I'd like to ask Mr. Tucker and his

         21  associate.  One has to do with the bullying aspect,

         22  which basically is student- on- student harassment.

         23  When an incident, when a student reports an incident

         24  of being harassed for any of these reasons, who does

         25  that report currently go to?
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          2                 MR. TUCKER:  It could go to any

          3  number of people. They could report it to a teacher,

          4  they could report it to a dean, they could report it

          5  to the school safety agent at the building.  They

          6  might report it to a parent.  Just any number of

          7  people.  But, the focus would be to get it to

          8  someone in some position of authority at the school

          9  building.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And whoever that

         11  report gets sent to, does it ultimately wind up with

         12  the principal of that school?

         13                 MR. TUCKER:  Yes it does, or at least

         14  the dean or the assistant principal for security.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  So, the

         16  principal or the assistant principals would always

         17  get a copy of that report?  And is it the

         18  principal's responsibility to enforce the current

         19  anti harassment regulations?

         20                 MR. TUCKER:  Absolutely.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  So, if there is

         22  an incident of bullying or harassment, how does that

         23  reflect, does that reflect, in any way, on the

         24  principal's performance?

         25                 MR. TUCKER:  Well, probably not.  I

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  mean, the incident itself, I mean, doesn't reflect

          3  on the principal's performance and probably

          4  shouldn't.  If the question relates to whether or

          5  not the report is taken and it's followed- up on,

          6  then that certainly would affect the, you know,

          7  relates to the principal's performance, and indeed,

          8  they're supposed to follow a protocol to make sure

          9  that that gets dealt with.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  So, under the

         11  current procedures and regulations that the

         12  principals abide by, there is no disincentive for

         13  them not to report these incidents?

         14                 MR. TUCKER:  None that I'm aware of,

         15  no.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  That is contrary

         17  to what I've seen in practice.  I think that in

         18  certain high schools in Queens, there have been well

         19  publicized reports of harassment being perpetrated

         20  against students, and for whatever reasons, the

         21  principals have not come forward.

         22                 In fact, one very heavily publicized

         23  case ultimately had that principal reprimanded

         24  because she did not report the case.  But,

         25  nonetheless, I think that, I would urge you to
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          2  reexamine the procedures that are being followed,

          3  and make sure, or send the message somehow to the

          4  principals that it, that the mere fact that they are

          5  reporting these incidents do not reflect negatively

          6  on their own job performance, in terms of running

          7  that school and enforcing the regulations that have

          8  to do with forbidding any kind of harassment.

          9                 MR. TUCKER:  I agree with you, and I

         10  will do exactly that.  We are trying to get, I mean,

         11  I am somewhat familiar with the history of the

         12  notion of disincentives for principals to report

         13  certain incidents.  That is not something that I

         14  subscribe to, nor does the Chancellor or the Mayor.

         15  So, we're trying to change that tone, and try to

         16  make it clear that the notion of reporting is

         17  important, because there needs to be some resolution

         18  and something done about the incident.

         19                 And we're not holding principals

         20  accountable -- to your earlier question, for, if

         21  they've taken the necessary steps to deal with the

         22  issue.  We will hold them accountable if in an

         23  instance, they choose not to report or choose not to

         24  follow- up on a complaint that they get, and they

         25  should be held accountable for that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I support this

          3  legislation, and many of us in the Council do, and

          4  when we support this legislation, in no way do we

          5  mean to suggest that you or the Chancellor or the

          6  Mayor would think otherwise in terms of preventing

          7  harassment of any kind in our schools.  So, I hope

          8  you'll take that back as well.

          9                 But, nonetheless, an empirical piece

         10  of evidence that I see in your own testimony, that

         11  leads me to believe that many of the incidents still

         12  go unreported, is the fact that you mentioned 12 or

         13  16 in the last year or the year before.  I mean,

         14  that is an abysmally low number.  I know,

         15  personally, of seven incidents, four in one of the

         16  high schools in my area, three at another high

         17  school in Brooklyn, that have been reported and have

         18  been widely publicized.  That's already seven at

         19  just two high schools.

         20                 So, I really find it very difficult

         21  to believe that they could only have been 12 or 16

         22  incidents.  There, I'm sure it's true that there are

         23  12 or 16 in those two years that you mentioned that

         24  were actually reported and classified as such. But,

         25  unfortunately, I have to believe that there are
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          2  many, many more incidents that actually took place,

          3  although they may not have been reported.

          4                 MR. TUCKER:  No, let me just clarify,

          5  just so we're clear on the numbers.  The 12 and the

          6  16 for the two respective years  '02 and  '03, and

          7  then the previous year  '01 '02, are crime

          8  statistics only.  So, those are, those represent

          9  incidents reported to the police department, or to

         10  the school, which ended up being investigated by the

         11  police department, and were classified by the Hate

         12  Crimes Unit of the police department as bias

         13  incidents.  So, that's what that reflects.

         14                 The, it's certainly clear to me that

         15  many more incidents than that occur.  What I haven't

         16  been able to do is, in the earlier discussion, I

         17  said, was to sort of break that out, so we know

         18  specifically which, among the complaints that we've

         19  taken and incidents that we've logged, referring to

         20  harassment, sexual harassment, intimidation,

         21  coercion, its, we haven't broken it down to

         22  determine which ones of those might fall within the

         23  definition of bullying.  But, we know that there are

         24  other incidents that have occurred, and the seven

         25  that you referenced are likely to be among those.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  So, isn't it

          3  then necessary for us to set up these tracking

          4  procedures?  I mean, you call them, in your own

          5  testimony, onerous and burdensome.  I think those

          6  were the words that you used.  Burdensome reporting

          7  requirements.  Unfortunately, to get at the heart of

          8  this problem, and to figure out what we can do as a

          9  system, to prevent any of these future, these

         10  incidents from happening in the future, we need to

         11  understand to what extent this is a problem in our

         12  schools --

         13                 MR. TUCKER:  -- I --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  -- And the only

         15  way to do that is to have accurate reporting.

         16                 MR. TUCKER:  I don't disagree.  I

         17  mean, as I mentioned earlier, we are, we recognize

         18  that not only as it relates to bullying, but in

         19  other categories of incidents as well.  I mean,

         20  there's a clear need.  We're in the process of

         21  tracking and putting together a system that would

         22  allow us to track better than we currently do.  We

         23  do track individually, on some, in some cases, we do

         24  a better job than others, depending on the kind of

         25  information that's collected.
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          2                 What we're trying to do now, with,

          3  through the School Safety Information Management

          4  System, is to refine that process to make it more

          5  clear and more effective and more efficient in terms

          6  of capturing information as it comes in from

          7  whatever database we now hold it and collect it, and

          8  allow us to look at that data to help us then figure

          9  out, first of all, whether there's a problem, what

         10  the nature of that problem is, and then to help us

         11  think through.  And when I say us, I mean not just

         12  the Chancellor's Office, but more importantly, the

         13  regions and the principals and local schools, to

         14  help them understand what the scope of the problem

         15  is that they're facing, help them identify that

         16  problem and then help them think through the

         17  solutions, in a proactive way for resolving those

         18  problems.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you Madam

         20  Chair.  I just have one more brief question.  I'll

         21  try to keep it brief. It has to do not so much with

         22  bullying, which is really student on- student

         23  intimidation and harassment, but possible

         24  intimidation of students by the school staff.

         25                 I, in light of what Council Member
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          2  Quinn asked you about, in terms of the legislation

          3  that this Council had passed and had been signed by

          4  Mayor Bloomberg, that that had not completely

          5  percolated into the system's procedures and

          6  regulations.  I have to ask if you are aware of

          7  Executive Order 41?  It's only been three weeks

          8  since the Mayor signed it, but nonetheless, three

          9  weeks is, at least for someone at your level, I

         10  think that it's necessary that, well, do you know

         11  about Executive Order 41?

         12                 MR. TUCKER:  I'm not familiar with

         13  it, no I'm not. Not by number anyway.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Okay, perhaps

         15  not by number, it's an Executive Order that the

         16  Mayor signed three weeks ago, that prohibits

         17  employees of the City of New York, which would

         18  include all of the people that work for you, where

         19  they cannot ask information from people in this City

         20  that is confidential and personal in nature,

         21  including but not limited to information with regard

         22  to someone's health status, someone's marital or

         23  divorce status, or someone's immigration status.

         24  Are you familiar with that Executive Order?

         25                 MR. ALLINGER:  We're familiar with
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          2  that Executive Order, and it's been widely

          3  disseminated at the Department.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Widely

          5  disseminated to all of the principals, staff and

          6  teachers?

          7                 MR. ALLINGER:  We've disseminated

          8  internally.  I will find out the list of all the

          9  categories of individuals that have received it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  That is an

         11  Executive Order that many of my colleagues and I

         12  feel very strongly about, and we will be talking to

         13  our students in our respective communities about how

         14  that Executive Order is being implemented.  I think

         15  it was a terrific Executive Order and I commend

         16  Mayor Bloomberg for signing it, and issuing it, but

         17  we are going to have to monitor the implementation

         18  of that Executive Order as well.  Thank you. Thank

         19  you Madam Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         21  Council Member Liu.  Council Member Koppell and

         22  McMahon, but before you begin, I just want to

         23  announce that we've been joined by Council Member

         24  Helen Foster from the Bronx, a Member of this

         25  Committee, Council Member Bill DeBlasio, I thought
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          2  was here, and Council Member David Yassky from

          3  Brooklyn, and also Council Member Gale Brewer from

          4  Manhattan, whose not a Member of the Committee, but

          5  obviously has a deep interest in this subject.

          6  Council Member Koppell.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  You regard

          8  this attempt of the City Council to legislate in

          9  this area as a pain in the neck, right?

         10                 MR. ALLINGER:  No.

         11                 MR. TUCKER:  No.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  No.  So, if

         13  you don't regard it as a pain in the neck, then I'll

         14  read the testimony seriously, and would like to call

         15  your attention -- do you have a copy of the proposed

         16  bill before you?  We can provide you with it.

         17                 MR. ALLINGER:  I have a copy.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  You have a

         19  copy?  Could you refer, Mr. Tucker, please, to page

         20  11, at least in mine, it's actually section five,

         21  I'm sorry, it looks like six d, I'm not sure the

         22  numbering is right, but anyway --

         23                 MR. ALLINGER:  -- Our copy's

         24  paginated differently.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay, well,
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          2  it talks about reporting.  It talks about reporting.

          3    It's the requirements with respect to reporting.

          4                 MR. ALLINGER:  Okay.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  You have

          6  that?

          7                 MR. TUCKER:  -- D --

          8                 MR. ALLINGER:  -- We've got it --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  -- It's

         10  section d.  You have that?

         11                 MR. ALLINGER:  Have it.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay, now

         13  I'll just parse it with you quickly, it says at the

         14  first part -- and by the way I'm following- up on

         15  Chris Quinn's questions a little bit.  She touched

         16  on this, but I think it's worth following- up,

         17  because you answered her without agreeing with her.

         18  This says that there should be, the principal should

         19  be appointed as being responsible for enforcement of

         20  the policies and accepting reports of incidents.

         21  But, it also says the principal or the designee of

         22  such principal.  So, it doesn't have to be the

         23  principal, as you said, it could be a designee,

         24  right?

         25                 MR. TUCKER:  Right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Right.  And

          3  then it goes on and it says the Chancellor shall

          4  also appoint a superintendent or his designee as the

          5  person to whom reports of incidents on school

          6  premises may be made when such report concerns the

          7  principal or other person appointed as the

          8  enforcement officer. Makes some sense, doesn't it,

          9  to have someone else get the report, if it's the

         10  principal or his anti- harassment officer, whose the

         11  alleged perpetrator, right?  That makes sense to

         12  have someone else?

         13                 MR. TUCKER:  Absolutely.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So those are

         15  the only two reporting individuals.  I couldn't see

         16  anybody else in this, whose a reporting individual.

         17  And, then, if we go down further, we look at the

         18  reports.  For each incident, they're supposed to

         19  complete an incident report, indicating information,

         20  including but not limited to the parties and type of

         21  harassment.  And that's really the only thing that's

         22  ask for.  The parties and type of harassment.

         23  That's not unreasonable, is it?  To make that a

         24  minimum requirement.  Is that unreasonable?  No.

         25                 Okay, so we have in this section on
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          2  reporting, a principal or designee at each school

          3  being responsible, which I would assume you'd want

          4  that anyway, and we have a report that includes the

          5  parties and type of harassment, and that's it,

          6  right?  Now, your statement says that this has, that

          7  this legislation is burdensome, enforcement and

          8  burdensome reporting requirements.  Is there

          9  something I'm missing?  I mean, this doesn't seem

         10  either burdensome or in any way inappropriate.  So,

         11  I want to know what you mean when you say there are

         12  burdensome reporting requirements.  What are you

         13  referring to?

         14                 MR. ALLINGER:  Council Member

         15  Koppell, I think that the parts of the bill we

         16  consider to be prescriptive, and would have

         17  preferred that it, that it, broader, so that the

         18  Chancellor could design a reporting system that was

         19  optimal. Moreover --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  -- How does

         21  this --

         22                 MR. ALLINGER:  -- Reference that --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  -- Prevent

         24   --

         25                 MR. ALLINGER:  Again, to reference
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          2  Section 2801 of the Education Law, the Chancellor

          3  is, along with Boards of Education across the State,

          4  is required to develop a system, and that authority

          5  is vested in him to create an incident reporting

          6  system to ensure that there are sanctions and

          7  consequences to certain prescribed behavior.  And,

          8  our belief is that that sort of discretion should be

          9  there with the Chancellor's office, so that we could

         10  design an optimal system.  This may be the way to

         11  go.  There may be a more optimal way.  What we're

         12  saying is give us, that we should have a broad

         13  authority to design an optimal system.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  And is 2801

         15  law?

         16                 MR. ALLINGER:  Yes, 2801 is the so-

         17  called Save Legislation, the --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  -- So it

         19  already  --

         20                 MR. ALLINGER:  -- Legislature adopted

         21   --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  --

         23  Prescribes such a system?  It already, right now,

         24  you're saying?

         25                 MR. ALLINGER:  There is already
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          2  requirements for every, for every school district

          3  across the State in terms of promulgating a code of

          4  conduct and reporting incidents.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay, well,

          6  I would like to know how this, which seems to me

          7  very basic, that there should be one person in the

          8  school to take reports, and that a report should

          9  include the parties and the type of incident.  I'd

         10  like to know how that, in any way, restricts you

         11  from complying with 2801?  You don't need to tell me

         12  now, but I don't believe it does.  So, I'd like to

         13  know, you know, how it does, because I think this

         14  goes in the, that comment about it being burdensome,

         15  goes in the pain in the neck, sweep it off the

         16  agenda kind of comment.

         17                 And I think that the second thing

         18  that I would ask you is, if, in fact, the police

         19  reports only deal with a very limited number of

         20  incidents, and there are many other incidents that

         21  you've admitted, why are you opposed to our

         22  requiring, by law, that those other incidents should

         23  be tracked and reported on?

         24                 MR. ALLINGER:  We don't oppose, and

         25  right now, we have to, under, again, I think 2801
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          2  and 2802, of the Education Law, the, which covers

          3  disciplinary actions, and we do record all the

          4  information pertaining to student conduct that

          5  result in suspensions.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So, but, I

          7  don't understand again the opposition to putting

          8  this in local law. What is wrong with putting this

          9  requirement, which is what this bill does, into

         10  local law?

         11                 MR. ALLINGER:  The local, the, we are

         12  required under State law to undertake certain

         13  actions and those authority to go further is vested

         14  specifically in Boards of Education across the

         15  State, in the Chancellor, in the case of New York

         16  City, and it further states that as long as it's not

         17  inconsistent with the Chancellor's policies, that

         18  local community boards and, if it's pre- cleared,

         19  then the community education councils have the

         20  authority to go adopt further policies.  And we're

         21  making the observation that the education law is

         22  very, very specific and controls in these matters,

         23  and that the optimal solution is to work together to

         24  pass the Duane/Sanders legislation and that we would

         25  work with the, work with the Council to identify
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          2  improvements to our policies and practices, and

          3  there are many issues that rose today that we will

          4  follow- up on.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So, is it

          6  your statement then that we don't have the power to

          7  do this?  It's State law preempts this or precludes

          8  this, is that your comment?

          9                 MR. ALLINGER:  In the matter of

         10  student conduct, 2801 controls.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So, you

         12  don't believe we have the power to do this?

         13                 MR. ALLINGER:  I think there are

         14  certain issues here where the State law preempts,

         15  yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay, well,

         17  that's a different argument than the one we've heard

         18  so far, and it may be a valid argument.  I would ask

         19  Counsel for the Committee for their opinion.  But,

         20  if, in fact, it is permitted by State law, and if,

         21  in fact, as you, yourself, have testified, the State

         22  law is not fully adequate, because that's why you're

         23  supporting amendments in Albany I take it, then if

         24  we could do it by local law, I take it you'd be in

         25  favor of that?
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          2                 MR. ALLINGER:  We support

          3  strengthening protections, specifically on issues of

          4  harassment and bullying. But, we believe that the

          5  vehicle for dealing with student codes of conduct,

          6  given the State law is so specific, that it, it

          7  needs to be accomplished through State law

          8  amendment.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  If it's

         10  precluded, as I say, or prohibited, I appreciate

         11  that that may be the case.  But, what I would ask

         12  you to do, because the State law hasn't passed-

         13  look, if we thought the State law was going pass in

         14  January, you could say, well why do it twice?

         15                 But it hasn't passed yet.  And if it

         16  hasn't passed, and there's a large constituent say,

         17  out there, that's concerned, and there are incidents

         18  that provoke that concern, and there's a feeling

         19  that this ought to be a piece of law, because even

         20  if Chancellor Klein is wholly in accord with this,

         21  we don't know whose going to be the next Chancellor.

         22    We don't know who the people are going to be to

         23  implement this, so we might like it as part of local

         24  law.

         25                 And since you've admitted that the
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          2  law bears strengthening, otherwise you wouldn't be

          3  supporting what's happening in Albany, I think you

          4  should work with Committee Council to do something

          5  that's not preempted, rather than just coming here

          6  and saying, well, you know, sort of flicking it

          7  aside, which is why I made my, it was not intended

          8  to be a facetious comment, it was intended to be a

          9  reaction I have to your testimony.

         10                 MR. ALLINGER:  I apologize if we gave

         11  offensive testimony, but I think in the last part of

         12  the testimony, we said we sort of want to work with

         13  the Council to strengthen our policies and

         14  practices, and that we want to work with you to

         15  accomplish the goals of this proposal.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Well, we, if

         17  you become a legislator, as you know, since you're

         18  there, you want the Chancellor to do it.  Since

         19  we're in a local legislature, we like to do it by

         20  local law.   So, we hope you'll not only do it

         21  yourselves, but help us to do it too.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         23  Council Member Koppell.  Council Member McMahon, and

         24  then Council Member Gerson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you
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          2  Madam Chairwoman and I want to thank you, and, of

          3  course, commend my colleague Alan Gerson for

          4  bringing this very important issue to the fore.  I

          5  want to make a point here, and I want preface it by

          6  letting my, those who feel, or focus the issue on

          7  anti- gay harassment or discrimination based on

          8  race, that for me, this is a much more basic issue.

          9  And for me, it's a basic, it's very basic simple

         10  bullying.

         11                 If you look at our schools, and if

         12  you go into our schools, and to the elementary

         13  schools, you'll see a type of bullying that has not

         14  yet evolved into the type of hate that we decry

         15  based on sexual orientation or race, because

         16  children aren't quite aware of that yet.  It's very

         17  basic, primal, bullying.

         18                 We had a case in Staten Island, at a

         19  school in my district, P.S.22, where a young boy

         20  named Jordan was harassed every day, and not

         21  because, it's the old type of school yard type

         22  bullying.  It never reached that level, I think that

         23  Mr. Tucker you spoke to eloquently in your

         24  statement.  We have policies if it's about anti-

         25  gay, if it's anti- white or black, those things are
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          2  covered by so many laws, but what we're talking

          3  about basic simple meanness.  I don't mean to

          4  downplay those other types, because, but I believe

          5  that the fourth grade bully, who bullies another kid

          6  just because it's a power thing or whatever reason

          7  they do it, that's the kid that grows up to harass

          8  somebody for being gay or black or Asian.

          9                 In the case of Jordan in P.S. 22, his

         10  mother went to the school repeatedly and got no

         11  relief.  And, by the way, the principal of P.S. 22

         12  is a very good friend of mine, and a very hard

         13  working woman.  Of course, she oversees a school

         14  that's really the size of the high school I went to,

         15  so it's a very big school.  Finally, the mother had

         16  to go in front of the school with a billboard, a

         17  billboard or a placard, and protest and just say, I

         18  don't want to get beat up anymore at my school, on

         19  behalf of her son.  And it wasn't until the media

         20  got a hold of the case, that there was some sort of

         21  intervention there.  And you know what? The child,

         22  the victim, had to transfer to another school.  He's

         23  now in fifth grade at another school.  Someone who

         24  owns a karate dojo had to come forward and offer the

         25  child free karate lessons.  Now, that's a very nice,
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          2  gracious gesture, but if that's the way our society

          3  deals with bullyism, then there's something wrong.

          4  And the point here is, that the child could get no

          5  relief at school, and the mother could get no relief

          6  at the school.

          7                 And I know what happened, because I

          8  am a parent, and I'm also a little league coach and

          9  a soccer coach and I work with children all the

         10  time, and I know what was happening. People were

         11  either saying it's the victim's fault, or they were

         12  saying it's really not so bad, or they were saying

         13  something that was inappropriate.  We've got a

         14  letter here that was presented to us by a mother,

         15  Cathy from Connecticut.  I don't know if she's here

         16  today or not.  It's part of our record, but I hope

         17  you'll take it and read it.  Because you will see

         18  how extreme it can go, and Cathy doesn't talk about

         19  her son Brandon being picked on for any reason other

         20  than basic hatred.

         21                 In other words, it's not a crime that

         22  fits into that anti- bias definition that we know.

         23  And everybody should know that I stand on that issue

         24  and fight for that issue as well. But, to me, it's

         25  basic childhood bullying that then grows into those
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          2  other hatred crimes.  I believe that the Department

          3  is not doing enough to address that issue.  I

          4  believe that, therefore, we should have this

          5  legislation because at least the statistics and the

          6  reporting would bring this to a fore.  I don't see

          7  anywhere really in your testimony, Mr. Tucker, where

          8  that is, issue is being addressed systematically,

          9  programmatically by the Department.

         10                 I would like to know how the

         11  Department will deal with that if it's not going to

         12  support this legislation?  And why should a child

         13  like Jordan be forced to take karate lessons in the

         14  year 2003? And in an advanced society, we would

         15  think, but maybe not the case.

         16                 MR. TUCKER:  There's no question that

         17  kids like Jordan shouldn't have to suffer.  I mean,

         18  we should be doing as much as we possibly can.  To

         19  answer your specific question, we spent a

         20  considerable amount of time working with the

         21  advocacy groups to ensure that we put together a

         22  section for the code of conduct that I referenced

         23  earlier around bullying, so that it's

         24  constitutional, so that it's enforceable.

         25                 That, this is the first time it's
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          2  ever happened, so we're moving in that direction.

          3  It, will it take time to sort of get the mindset?

          4  You mentioned, you referenced the fact that it

          5  didn't appear, at least, that people at the school

          6  were responsive enough, and I think that's about

          7  education, it's about, you know, reinforcing the

          8  notion of what the expectations are around from our

          9  staff and schools, from teachers, with respect to

         10  looking after our kids.

         11                 Teachers do a great job of looking

         12  after our students now.  What we want to do, I

         13  suspect, is raise the bar, as it relates to these

         14  kinds of issues.  To have people pay more attention

         15  to the kinds of things that are happening to kids in

         16  the school yard, in the classroom, in the hallways.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  See, but my

         18  experience is different.  I don't believe that the

         19  intervention exists now that should exist,

         20  especially with elementary school children.  I think

         21  that many teachers or administration, administrators

         22  are somewhat in denial as to the problem,

         23  overwhelmed by the workload that they have, or just

         24  don't realize how significant it is.  And I know

         25  that there are national studies that show that the

                                                            73

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  bully of today is the hate crime perpetrator of

          3  tomorrow, and if not worse.  It should become a

          4  priority, I believe, of the Department in this area,

          5  to get in for early intervention and to keep

          6  statistics on it, and to monitor it.  And that's

          7  what we're advocating with this legislation, and

          8  that's what I think the Department should be

          9  standing up for as well.

         10                 MR. TUCKER:  I agree that --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- Because

         12  how can you know, if statistics aren't kept, and if

         13  there isn't an overall policy to pursue this, then

         14  how can you really know if we're succeeding?  I

         15  mean, just, do more mothers like Jordan's have to

         16  get out in front of the school and say help me?

         17                 MR. TUCKER:  Well, let me just say

         18  that the policy right now, as it relates to

         19  prevention and intervention activities is very

         20  broad, and is intended to cover a whole variety of

         21  incidents and events that take place in schools, and

         22  many of those are dealt with in the proposed

         23  legislation and are already dealt with in a number

         24  of other areas and venues within materials that we

         25  have, as I referenced, and also in the code of
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          2  conduct.

          3                 So, can we do more?  I think the

          4  answer is yes, no question about it.  But, do, it

          5  doesn't suggest that there isn't a foundation and

          6  that there's not already in place a mechanism for

          7  addressing these kinds of issues.  But, we can, no

          8  question, do more.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  So, if what

         10  we could do more is not what we're proposing, what

         11  would you have us do that would be more, that maybe

         12  we can find a middle ground to address the problem?

         13                 MR. TUCKER:  Well, part of the middle

         14  ground is, and I don't think it's even middle

         15  ground, I think we're all on the same, the same

         16  step, lockstep, with respect to what we want to try

         17  and accomplish.

         18                 As I referenced, I think education is

         19  really key. I mean, you suggested that teachers and

         20  others in staff and schools are not, you know, sort

         21  of fell on deaf ears, the issue around Jordan.  And

         22  so the question is how do we, how do we intensify

         23  that?  How do we take it to the next level in terms

         24  of insuring that either through professional

         25  development, through the materials, through giving,
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          2  making it a priority, the issue a priority.  We've

          3  tried to do that through the code.  When the code is

          4  out there, when these lessons take place, as it's

          5  introduced.  I think all of that, in a way, is

          6  cumulative, and the steps, taking steps in the right

          7  direction toward addressing this issue.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Council

          9  Member David Yassky.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Thank you

         11  Chair Moskowitz and I just want to commend the Chair

         12  for holding this very, very important hearing, and

         13  Council Member Gerson for your leadership on this

         14  bill.  I guess I would simply want to say to the

         15  witnesses, I appreciate your testimony.  I

         16  understand the position that you take in your

         17  testimony.  Of course, the, that you recognize the

         18  seriousness of the harassment problem.  You

         19  recognize there, you're actively seeking to address

         20  it and you are, and I credit you for that.

         21                 I would say that I think that this

         22  legislation is worthwhile because a problem like

         23  this, like other deeply rooted social phenomenon,

         24  you know, whether it's drunk driving, whether it's

         25  smoking, you really need to address it at a bunch of
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          2  levels, and having on the books legislation is a, is

          3  not just a statement, but is a direction to

          4  everybody out there in the field who works in your

          5  Department, that this is a priority and needs to be

          6  taken seriously.  It's a kind of statement of

          7  priority that I think really is, can't be duplicated

          8  simply by directives from the Department.

          9                 I think that when you have the City

         10  Government on record saying this is a priority that

         11  needs to be addressed, that has ramifications all

         12  throughout the field and throughout the people

         13  actually doing the job, and I think if for that, if

         14  for no other reason, for that reason alone, it is

         15  worthwhile.

         16                 Now I will just say in talking to the

         17  parents in my district, which I do every day, our

         18  parents, they're concerned about science labs and

         19  are there math teachers, you now, well trained and

         20  what's with the new curriculum, and they have a host

         21  of concerns.  But more than anything else, it is the

         22  issue of discipline and order and whose in charge in

         23  the classroom and in the school, that I hear most

         24  from parents.  And, the, you know as Council Member

         25  McMahon said, the egregious bias- types of

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  harassment are the most virulent troubling form, but

          3  they're all, in some ways, the tip of a larger

          4  iceberg, and when you, but as long as that goes

          5  unaddressed, the rest of the iceberg is going to be

          6  sitting right there.

          7                 So, I hope that you will reconsider

          8  your position on this legislation, particular, and

          9  I, but I again would also want to restate my

         10  commendation for the work that you're already doing.

         11    Thank you very much Chair Moskowitz.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Council

         13  Member Gerson.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

         15  very much.  Let me just note at the outset that I'm

         16  here not as a Member, but as a guest of this

         17  Committee, and I thank the Chair for that

         18  opportunity, and I will refrain from reiterating the

         19  comments and colleagues have very eloquent, and size

         20  of ones from my colleagues.  I'll just try and

         21  briefly touch on a few follow- up points, so we

         22  could get on to the witnesses.  Perhaps I can

         23  clarify some confusion, or maybe we can achieve

         24  that.  The 12 incidents to which you refer, in what

         25  school did those incidents take place?
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          2                 MR. TUCKER:  I don't have that

          3  information.  I could find out --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- No, in

          5  what particular school?

          6                 MR. TUCKER:  No, they were different

          7  schools.  I mean, I don't --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- 12

          9  incidents City- wide?

         10                 MR. TUCKER:  Yea, this is City- wide.

         11    This wasn't a particular school.  This --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- Out of how

         13  many schools we have in the City?

         14                 MR. TUCKER:  1,200 plus.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  1,200 plus,

         16  and you're saying in the course of one year?  I mean

         17  I grew up in the City and attended the public

         18  schools.  I think my point, I mean, that statistic,

         19  I think, is inherently incredulous.  I mean, it

         20  contradicts all of our experience day- in and day-

         21  out.  How many- you did mention in your testimony

         22  that you acknowledge that there were many more such

         23  incidences that don't fit within the narrow criteria

         24  under which these 12 were reported up to you. Could

         25  you give us a sense of the, what range, by what
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          2  factor we have additional such incidents?  Ten

          3  times, 20 times, five times as much as the 12?

          4                 MR. TUCKER:  I can't, I can give you,

          5  I can get that information for you.  But, just to

          6  clarify, the, you know that is, those are crimes

          7  stats, not the total incidents, and so the question

          8  that you just raised relates to the other incidents

          9  that are non- criminal in nature.  That information

         10  I can get for you.  As I said earlier, we don't have

         11  it broken down, and so we have those numbers in the

         12  aggregate, and in different categories.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I want to get

         14  to you about that.  But, even if we restricted the

         15  universe to crime stats, which last I checked, a

         16  physical assault, an unwanted punch or physical

         17  contact that was unwanted, that is hurtful, is a

         18  crime, under the criminal code.  And, again, I can't

         19  believe that in terms of, the number of repeated or

         20  such incidents, that we're only down to 12.  I think

         21  this brings out that there is a need for improved

         22  reporting and tracking, which is exactly what the

         23  bill purports to do.  I mean, are you satisfied with

         24  your current tracking system that you have within?

         25                 MR. TUCKER:  Well, no, I think I made

                                                            80

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  it clear that I'm not satisfied, which is why we're

          3  pursuing, my office is pursuing this whole notion of

          4  creating this new system --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- Right --

          6                 MR. TUCKER:  -- That I think will

          7  give us that capacity do it better.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  No, and I

          9  actually appreciate your testimony, and I was glad

         10  to hear that you said that we should be doing as

         11  much as we possibly can, and I think you also

         12  acknowledged that we have not historically been

         13  doing as much as we possibly can to deal with the

         14  situations, such as a Jordan situation, which my

         15  colleague, Council Member McMahon cited by example,

         16  and the other such situations which you acknowledged

         17  in your testimony, is a problem.

         18                 I guess, I think your testimony, in

         19  fact, is the best testimony for passage of the

         20  legislation that we are proposing, because you

         21  acknowledged the need to do more than we've

         22  historically done, you've acknowledged the need to

         23  have better tracking, you've acknowledged that this

         24  is a serious problem.

         25                 I'm glad that you're attuned to it,
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          2  but you know, at some point, you might retire, you

          3  might move some place else, and why not have in

          4  place a regimen to be sure, especially given the

          5  history that you have said yourself, we have not

          6  been doing what we, as much as we possibly could.

          7  Let's have a local law, which assures that we do now

          8  and for all time, to protect these kids.  You don't

          9  have to answer to that, but I would like you to

         10  answer this, the only substantive objection that you

         11  have cited seems, that I hear, seems, I mean aside

         12  from points that need clarification, which we could

         13  work on in terms of the specific language, but seems

         14  to be this State law and the possible overlapping of

         15  the two laws.

         16                 And let me just, two points on that,

         17  cover two points on that.  I'm discerning a very

         18  disturbing tendency by this Administration.  We had

         19  a hearing Madam Chair, last week, on a completely

         20  different issue, involved the environment, involving

         21  emissions of diesel particulate from construction

         22  equipment used at construction that will be going on

         23  Downtown and throughout the City, and the

         24  Administration said its shares the goals, but

         25  there's a State law pending, and therefore, we
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          2  shouldn't pass the local law because there's the

          3  State law.  The language is almost verbatim to what

          4  I just heard you testify.

          5                 But, of course, we don't know for

          6  sure, that the State law could be passed, will be

          7  passed, or when it will be passed, and if we

          8  acknowledge that there are serious problems, why

          9  can't we do both, why can't we pass what we can at

         10  the City level and then support what we can at the

         11  State level, and see what happens first?  If it's

         12  such an important problem, why do we not go through

         13  whichever route will work out quickest and best?

         14                 MR. ALLINGER:  I, Councilman, I think

         15  this is an issue where we obviously want an

         16  enforceable law that will stand up, that isn't

         17  challengeable, and the optimum, the optimal solution

         18  is to have a State law, which is very specific and

         19  vests certain powers in Boards of Ed or in the

         20  Chancellor, in the case of New York City and

         21  community school boards to some extent, that we work

         22  together to secure that necessary passage, but

         23  that's not saying we can't, we stand ready to work

         24  with you as a sponsor of this legislation, to see

         25  how we can harmonize the authority of the Council as
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          2  is juxtaposed to the State to get strong policies.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Is it your

          4  testimony the Council cannot mandate this type of

          5  reporting and tracking mechanism for incidents that

          6  are violations of either the, an administrative code

          7  or a criminal code?

          8                 MR. ALLINGER:  I, this specifically

          9  went --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- I mean, is

         11  that your testimony, that we cannot do that?

         12                 MR. ALLINGER:  -- The State Law 2801

         13  controls on codes of conduct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I understand.

         15    But I'm talking about tracking violations of that

         16  code, and the City has its own, the Department of

         17  Education does have its own code that transcends

         18  this State Law, so one major part --

         19                 MR. ALLINGER:  -- It derives its

         20  authority --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- Of this

         22  Bill --

         23                 MR. ALLINGER:  -- It derives its

         24  authority from that --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- I
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          2  understand that --

          3                 MR. ALLINGER:  -- State Law --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: -- I

          5  understand that. But, we are talking about not

          6  tracking violations, and are you saying we don't

          7  have the authority to do that?  To mandate that?

          8                 MR. ALLINGER:  I believe that the

          9  optimal approach would be to amend --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- I know you

         11  believe that --

         12                 MR. ALLINGER:  -- 2801 --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- But I'm

         14  asking you, well maybe we should get back -- I

         15  cannot believe -- what I would ask our counsel to

         16  follow- up --

         17                 MR. ALLINGER:  -- We would like to

         18  work with you. We're not here to be oppositional.

         19  We share the same goals. We'd like to find an

         20  effective, enforceable --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- I

         22  understand that, and I'm frustrated because I heard

         23  the same thing in this other hearing.  My

         24  constituents are being poisoned by diesel day- in

         25  and day- out, and the Administration wants us to
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          2  wait for a State Law that may or may not be passed.

          3  Kids everyday are being bullied and taunted and

          4  driven to the brink of suicide or worse, or there

          5  can be no worse, but driven to that brink, and

          6  again, you want to wait till the possibility of a

          7  State Law, which may or, we don't even know --

          8                 MR. ALLINGER:  -- We don't want --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- Do you

         10  know if there's going to be a State Legislative

         11  session --

         12                 MR. ALLINGER:  -- We don't want to

         13  wait, I, the --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- But in

         15  terms of passage --

         16                 MR. ALLINGER:  -- Chancellor has been

         17  clear that he has zero tolerance for these kinds of

         18  behaviors.  That's why we amended the discipline

         19  code, that's why we put specific language in around

         20  bullying, for the first time --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- Well, let

         22  me ask you about that language --

         23                 MR. ALLINGER:  -- In September --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- And then

         25  I'll conclude. Because I mean, I appreciate that and
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          2  we just heard testimony and we'll hear more

          3  testimony that, in fact, we have not historically

          4  done everything we possibly can.  The best statistic

          5  you can come up and prepare, and prepared testimony,

          6  which you had ample time to prepare, is 12

          7  incidents, which are, don't include bullying, that

          8  some of which include, maybe they do, maybe they

          9  don't, and if you can't come up with a better, more

         10  accurate statistic, it shows there's something wrong

         11  in the tracking mechanism.  So you're already

         12  committed to doing what the law seeks, so let's get

         13  the law passed, so you'll be in compliance and your

         14  successors will be required to comply.

         15                 Let me just ask one last area, and

         16  that's is the definition of bullying, which, or, and

         17  you stated in your testimony the current City

         18  department regulations, here, prescribe, and the

         19  relevant part is engaging in intimidating and

         20  bullying behavior to compel a student or staff

         21  member to do something.  What if the behavior is not

         22  intended to compel anybody to do anything, but it is

         23  just pure harassment for the sake of making

         24  someone's life miserable for whatever reason?

         25                 MR. TUCKER:  First of all, I'm not
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          2  sure that the, that the definition is complete, as

          3  it relates solely --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- Well, I'm

          5  just reading what you --

          6                 MR. TUCKER:  -- Yea, I know, I'm

          7  saying, but that may not be the complete definition

          8  of the section of the bullying, that we've, the

          9  section on bullying that we've inserted into the

         10  code of conduct --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- Will you

         12  get us that in the follow- up material?

         13                 MR. TUCKER:  Absolutely, yea, sure.

         14  But, the second point is, perhaps more important

         15  point is, the fact that there are a number of other

         16  areas within the conduct that prohibited, within the

         17  code of conduct, that prohibits certain types of

         18  conduct that would be applicable even if bullying

         19  were not there.  So, it's not as if there were,

         20  there is a section that relates to intimidation and

         21  coercion and prohibits that type of conduct.  Above

         22  and beyond the specific conduct that we described in

         23  the section that relates to bullying, which is new

         24  to the Code.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Again, you
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          2  get to that in the latter part of your testimony,

          3  which then goes on to say engaging in verbal or

          4  physical conduct that threatens another with harm,

          5  and then including, and then epithets referring to

          6  race, et cetera, et cetera, and the points which

          7  were omitted, as Council Member Quinn, but again,

          8  threatens another with harm doesn't, on its face,

          9  get at the underlying harm of repeated subjecting to

         10  this type of conduct.  When someone reads that, it

         11  seems to indicate threatened with immediate harm or

         12  harm of some physical nature.  Again, going by your

         13  language --

         14                 MR. TUCKER:  -- Yea, this is

         15  illustrative of the Code, not all inclusive, when

         16  you see the code, I think you'll get the --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- All right,

         18  and you'll get it to us.  I would just then conclude

         19  by pointing out, I think the fact that you chose

         20  these languages which do not fully cover the gamut

         21  about which we are concerned, as illustrative, gets

         22  to the bottom line point that my colleagues have

         23  brought on, and that is, with this type of conduct,

         24  there has been, for too long, a phenomenon of

         25  throwing up your hands, that's just the way it is,
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          2  if no one is about to go to the hospital or if no

          3  one, you know, is about to do something horrible, we

          4  just let it slide. We have all observed that for too

          5  long.  We're trying to do something about it.  I

          6  think your testimony indicates the need to do

          7  something about it, and I hope you will join with us

          8  to make sure that in local law forever we will do

          9  something about it. Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         11  Council Member Gerson.  I want to thank you Mr.

         12  Tucker and Mr. Allinger for your testimony, and I

         13  want to reiterate that I understand you're short-

         14  staffed Mr. Allinger, and I have advocated that you

         15  be less than short- staffed, but in terms of the

         16  information requests, short- staffed is not an

         17  excuse.

         18                 Our schools are short- staffed, and

         19  we can't tell our teachers and our principals, well

         20  then you can't educate our children.  So, I would

         21  ask that you answer all of our questions, line by

         22  line, and if you can't, there are ample

         23  opportunities for you to have discussions with the

         24  Education Committee staff.  But I cannot have

         25  another hearing where we are being asked to fly

                                                            90

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  blind.  We need the information in advance, so that

          3  we can ask follow- up questions, and have the

          4  Members well versed in the topic.  The next hearing

          5  is October 14th on Middle Schools.  You have any

          6  questions about the questions?

          7                 MR. ALLINGER:  No, I'm working on

          8  them right now.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  You can reach

         10  me 24/7, and I urge you to do so.  Thank you very

         11  much.  We're going to hear next from.  Oh, I'm sorry

         12  Gale.  I, your name wasn't down here. I'm sorry.

         13  One more minute. Gale Brewer.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  This is a

         15  quick question. In my district, on the west side of

         16  Manhattan, the principals call me quite, two that I

         17  can think of, where you have a congested community,

         18  so you have a high school next to a middle school, a

         19  middle school next to an elementary school, and

         20  dismissal time, tons of bullying, and they call

         21  because they don't know what to do.  And what they

         22  want is, what is the group Gale that I can work with

         23  to try to counter this bullying?  And I'm trying to

         24  work with them to get non- profits to do that.  But,

         25  they don't know what to do in terms of this issue.
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          2                 So, I think that, as we are preparing

          3  material, you indicated that you have some that

          4  you're going to share it with us, we need to

          5  understand, they need to understand, there's no

          6  follow- up to the problem.  Once there's a problem,

          7  it's identified, I don't know if it shows up in your

          8  statistics, if it is off- site.  Much of the

          9  bullying that's going to go on in the community is

         10  going to be just as school dismissal takes place.

         11  And, I think that that would be another

         12  consideration, in terms of the statistics.

         13                 The other thing I want to mention is

         14  that you mentioned in your statistics or one of the

         15  other materials about young women.  I remember when

         16  Inspector Diaz testified, when he was still head of

         17  School Security, before the current Chancellor, and

         18  he indicated that the numbers of incidents against

         19  young women was much higher, and I want to make sure

         20  that, again, what's the follow- up?  It gets

         21  reported, but what gets done about it?  And that's

         22  not ever addressed.

         23                 Principals call me all the time with

         24  assistance with whom to contact about these issues.

         25  It's not something that's part of their daily
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          2  agenda.  It's not curriculum- based, they really

          3  don't know what to do and in a time when there are

          4  young people who are challenged in the high schools,

          5  another problem, they have a whole room at two high

          6  schools now with young people sitting, perhaps who

          7  have incidents of their own, and no place to put

          8  them.  They're not in New Beginnings, they're just

          9  sitting there, and I'm working with them to try to

         10  get them moved some place that's more appropriate.

         11  Again, it's not directly bullying, but it's back to

         12  this issue of not knowing what to do.  Thank you

         13  Madam Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         15  Council Member Brewer.  Thank you.  Is there, no

         16  response, great.  We're going to take a five minute

         17  break, and then we're going to hear from the UFT and

         18  we have two panelists of advocates.  We have to be

         19  out of this room by one o'clock, so we're going to

         20  have to move with all due speed.  We're going to

         21  take a five minute recess.

         22                 (Recess taken)

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And we have a

         24  very specific and strict time constraint.  We have

         25  to be out of this room by one o'clock.  I'd like to
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          2  call Ronald Jones from the United Federation of

          3  Teachers.  Thank you for being here, I guess, all

          4  morning, I should say.  If everyone can take their

          5  seats.  The light has to be on for the mic to be on.

          6    If you could just state your name and affiliation

          7  for the record.

          8                 MR. JONES:  Can you hear me?  Okay.

          9  I'm Ronald Jones, Secretary and Executive Assistant

         10  to the President of the United Federation of

         11  Teachers.

         12                 Good morning and thanks for the

         13  opportunity to testify.  Harassment in schools is a

         14  serious problem.  At the least, it interferes with

         15  learning, and that concerns us because our members

         16  are in schools to help children learn.  Harassment

         17  affects more than just the victim, although that

         18  person, child or adult, can suffer extreme emotional

         19  distress as a result. Children are the butt of

         20  harassment, suffer physical and psychosomatic

         21  symptoms, stop attending school out of fear and

         22  humiliation or even attempt suicide.

         23                 But, harassment also affects the

         24  entire school community.  Bullying may start with a

         25  single aggressive child, but unchecked, it becomes
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          2  organized behavior, spreading from group to group,

          3  causing distraction, divisiveness and eventually an

          4  ugly culture of fear and intimidation.

          5                 Harassment often ends in violence,

          6  whether against the victim or in retaliation against

          7  the perpetrators.  That's why it's critical that a

          8  code of conduct include acts of harassment before

          9  they become outright assaults.  The creation of the

         10  Harvey Milk School was a last resort measure for the

         11  protection of students because of strong anti-

         12  harassment measures are absent in too many schools

         13  and punishment is rare.  The 2001/2002 school year

         14  was marked by frequent acts of harassment against

         15  students of Arab descent, and even other students

         16  with brown skin, but these were rarely reported or

         17  reprimanded.  We need to fix this.

         18                 We need to create a zero tolerance

         19  attitude toward harassing behavior from the moment

         20  it first becomes evident.  We need to ensure real,

         21  swift consequences for anyone who is found to have

         22  engaged in harassment against students or staff.  We

         23  need to create a climate of respect and safety in

         24  our schools, and measures before you today can put

         25  the force of law behind existing fair practices
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          2  policies of the Department and the UFT Contract.

          3                 The UFT, over its entire history, has

          4  fought to create a safe and civil school environment

          5  for students and the entire school community, so

          6  that learning can take place.  It's been a struggle,

          7  and this year, with so many schools so badly

          8  overcrowded, and with procedures for enforcing the

          9  code of conduct still not in place, safety and order

         10  in schools are becoming harder and harder to attain

         11  and sustain.

         12                 Of what use are rules if they are not

         13  enforced? Of what use are suspensions, when there

         14  are no procedures for superintendents' suspensions

         15  in place, or no off- site suspension facilities, and

         16  few in- house suspension rooms because of lack of

         17  space?  We are hearing again of youngsters who have

         18  been suspended, returning to the same classroom

         19  within days.  And student given one- year

         20  suspensions last Spring are back in school this

         21  Fall.  And the number of school security guards has

         22  declined significantly.  It's no accident that even

         23  in an atmosphere of declining school crime, student

         24  assaults against other students and against staff

         25  are up.
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          2                 I fear that expanding the number and

          3  types of incidents that can result in disciplinary

          4  action will have no effect, unless and until a

          5  commitment to enforcement is in place. Increased

          6  safety measures are once again on our list of

          7  contract goals.  But, even if attained, that leaves

          8  only the contractual procedures for enforcement, not

          9  the force of law.  Therefore, we recommend that this

         10  bill include provisions that hold appropriate

         11  administrators responsible for its enforcement.

         12                 Similarly, reporting is an important

         13  tool for enforcement.  School- level administrators

         14  must be held accountable for reporting all

         15  incidents, as required by law.  We don't want to see

         16  a repetition of the practice of principals sweeping

         17  incidents under the rug because of fear of negative

         18  evaluation.

         19                 I do want to mention that both the

         20  Department and the UFT have agreed to non-

         21  discrimination policy in our joint contract with

         22  regard to both the students and other adults.

         23  Courteous, respectful interaction between adults are

         24  an absolute prerequisite if we're going to demand

         25  and expect similar behavior among students.
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          2                 When supervisors engage in

          3  denigrating staff members, especially in front of

          4  students in classrooms and hallways, it's not

          5  surprising that students emulate that behavior

          6  toward anyone perceived as lower in the pecking

          7  order than they are.  Patterns of continuing abusive

          8  behavior on the part of supervisors towards other

          9  staff members should, and I believe are, punishable

         10  under the proposed legislation, and again would be

         11  helpful in strengthening existing contractual

         12  provisions.

         13                 We are also pleased that the bill's,

         14  by the bill's prohibition of any retaliation against

         15  those who report harassment to protect both students

         16  and staff who do so.  It must also condemn and

         17  punish reckless or willfully false accusations of

         18  harassment.  We must not allow this charge to be

         19  misused, as sometimes has been the case with

         20  corporal punishment charges.

         21                 Unfortunately, some students have

         22  caught on to the fact that they can "get even" with

         23  teachers who are too strict or demanding by charging

         24  them with corporal punishment.  They know how such a

         25  charge, no matter how unfounded, results in
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          2  immediate removal of the teacher from the classroom

          3  until it's investigated.

          4                 A recent column by Karen Hunter of

          5  the Daily News noted numerous teachers sitting in

          6  rubber rooms with nothing to do as a result of such

          7  charges.  Sometimes, even after a charge is found to

          8  be untrue, teachers feel ashamed and tainted by it.

          9  We must not allow our tough discipline code to be

         10  used unfairly against anyone, teachers, students or

         11  staff.

         12                 Perhaps the most important provision

         13  of this bill have to do with training students and

         14  staff.  All staff, including supervisory, non-

         15  professional and support staff need training on how

         16  to prevent harassment and discrimination, how to

         17  identify it, and how to respond appropriately.

         18                 Students, too, need to be more aware

         19  of what constitutes discrimination and harassment,

         20  and how to resist peer pressure to engage in such

         21  behavior.  This instruction must occur from the

         22  earliest grades.  As we have said repeatedly with

         23  regard to heavy emphasis on narrow definitions of

         24  academic achievement, even in the primary years,

         25  schools, along with parents, of course, are
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          2  important conveyors of values and the attributes

          3  that lead to responsible citizenship, and we don't

          4  want to lose sight of that.

          5                 Finally, these proposed changes to

          6  the administrative code, since they pertain to the

          7  basic health and safety of school, staff and

          8  students, should apply to all schools, elementary,

          9  middle, high school, and to charter schools.

         10                 By requiring strict enforcement,

         11  insisting on record keeping and accountability,

         12  prohibiting misuse, and protecting those who report

         13  harassment, this legislation will have teeth and can

         14  be a real vehicle for improving school climate and

         15  safety for us all.  Thank you for your attention.

         16  If you have any questions.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.  I

         18  have one question, but first, I just want to ask, is

         19  there anyone from DOE here?  Okay, that's terribly

         20  unfortunate because people who have direct

         21  experience with the schools are testifying and

         22  sometimes Tweed can be a little bit of an ivory

         23  tower, and it's unfortunate that no one stayed to

         24  listen to what other people had to say about this

         25  incredibly important topic.
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          2                 But, let me ask you about, if I may,

          3  this morning's testimony and what was said.  It

          4  appears as if the only information that the DOE

          5  claims they have with regard to bullying and bias

          6  crimes, are the statistic they cited that, I

          7  believe, there were 12 bias incidents.  Is there

          8  other data that they have available?  And if so,

          9  what is it?  What form does it take?

         10                 MR. JONES:  Hello?  Okay.  It's my

         11  understanding that there are several methods by

         12  which the Department collects information.  One of

         13  them, obviously, is what they told you, which is

         14  criminal activity, which is reported by school

         15  security agents to their commanders, and then to the

         16  police department, and then you have those records.

         17                 But, there is another track, which is

         18  called, my understanding, it's called the Emergency

         19  Information Center.  And my understanding is that

         20  every school principal is required to report

         21  incidents that don't necessarily rise to the level

         22  of criminal activity, to this information center,

         23  which they can do by phone and on- line, and they

         24  can easily track these reports of incidents in the

         25  school, which would cover the kinds of behavior that
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          2  this legislation would involve.  So, they easily

          3  have access to this information, and can collect

          4  data on- line, since this is done on a daily basis.

          5                 In addition, within a school, when

          6  there is an incident, the teachers also file

          7  something called an Incident Report, which kind of

          8  parallels the Emergency Information Center. So

          9  that's basically the methods by which they can

         10  collect data easily.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And would you

         12  presume that even that information would not reflect

         13  all of the incidences that occur?

         14                 MR. JONES:  I would agree.  But, just

         15  my experience as a classroom teacher of 25 years,

         16  many of those incidents never see the light of day

         17  in terms of reporting.  So, even, even if we took

         18  the incidents from the EIC reports, that would still

         19  undercount the instances of bullying behavior and

         20  harassing behavior.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And would you

         22  agree that with the personnel shortages that we're

         23  currently experiencing, that things are likely to

         24  get worse, rather than better with regard to

         25  something like bullying, that when you have recess,
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          2  with 70 kids, and one adult, things could get worse?

          3                 MR. JONES:  No question about it.

          4  And particularly in schools that are overcrowded,

          5  overlapping sessions, as one other person previously

          6  testified, or one of the Council persons said, when

          7  you have a high school that's next to an elementary

          8  school, or a junior high next to an elementary

          9  school, sometimes that bullying is because of age

         10  difference in the peer groups, and racial and other

         11  kinds of tensions, which, just, you know, this is an

         12  ethnic diversity, and you name the problem, there'll

         13  be a problem over it, or a fight, or an argument

         14  about something.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Do my

         16  colleagues have -- we've been joined by Council

         17  Member Domenic Recchia from Brooklyn.  Council

         18  Member Quinn, did you have a question or a

         19  statement?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I just, we

         21  partially addressed it, but the system that you, EIC

         22  I think? That you described --

         23                 MR. JONES:  -- Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So, the way

         25  the Department of Education's testimony kind of
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          2  read, made it sound like we would, this bill would

          3  require a totally new system that would be very,

          4  very burdensome, I think was even the word they

          5  used.  But, it sounds like, from what you're saying,

          6  there's already a system in place that might just

          7  need some extra fields or categories added to the

          8  screens.  It seems from what you're saying that it

          9  wouldn't be very complicated at all, and actually

         10  just be a small addition to the work that's already

         11  done by the principal, is that?

         12                 MR. JONES:  To my, it's my judgment

         13  that the system is already in place.  That they

         14  already collect such information, and all they would

         15  have to do is disaggregate it. And, since it's all

         16  computerized, I think they would be able to do it

         17  very easily, and it would not be an additional

         18  reporting burden on principals, since they have to

         19  report this stuff anyway, under the existing rules.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Council

         21  Member Quinn, if I can just jump in here --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  -- Please --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Because in

         24  our questions that we asked on September 23rd, which

         25  we did not get answers to, we asked whether there
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          2  are other mechanisms of reporting the information.

          3  If they had answered our questions, then we would

          4  have been able to say at this hearing, well, print

          5  us out some examples.  Let's see where bullying fits

          6  into that rubric.  But when the Department refuses

          7  to give us the information that they clearly have,

          8  how long has EIC been around?

          9                 MR. JONES:  Three or four years --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Burt, the

         11  holder of all knowledge --

         12                 MR. JONES:  -- Yea --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Three

         14  years?

         15                 MR. JONES:  -- Three years, at least

         16  years.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, I just, I

         18  wanted to explain to my colleagues that the reason

         19  we are forced to kind of ask these questions and

         20  don't have the level of detail, is because of a

         21  clear decision on the part of the Department not to

         22  provide information that we know they have.  I'm

         23  sorry to interrupt.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  No, thank you

         25  very much for adding that, and I just want to add,
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          2  it's, in addition to what the Chair said,

          3  unfortunate that nobody from the Department is here,

          4  nor do I see anyone from the Office of Legislative

          5  Affairs even in the room.

          6                 If there is someone and I don't

          7  recognize you, if you would identify yourself, that

          8  would be helpful, so we'd know that at least the

          9  Office of Legislative Affairs is here.

         10                 Because perhaps given, as the Chair

         11  said, sometimes Tweed can be an ivory tower, perhaps

         12  the people from Tweed were not completely up- to-

         13  date, as up- to- date as the union is with the

         14  activities of teachers and principals and I doubt

         15  that they didn't know about the system.  But, if

         16  perhaps that was the case, had they stayed, they

         17  would now know about it.  Thank you.

         18                 MR. JONES:  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Council

         20  Member Gerson.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you.

         22  Just one question.  Do teachers presently need

         23  additional support, or would teachers benefit from

         24  additional support in dealing and intervening with

         25  cases of bullying?  And would this legislation
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          2  provide some of the additional support that would be

          3  helpful?

          4                 MR. JONES:  Teachers clearly, and

          5  principals as well, clearly need additional support.

          6    In my testimony, I indicated to you that the

          7  Board's, I'm sorry, the Department's representatives

          8  indicated that one measure was suspensions of

          9  students who engage in this kind of behavior, and in

         10  my testimony, what we're trying to explain to you is

         11  that in some places, there aren't even procedures in

         12  place for superintendents' suspensions.  So, and no

         13  sites for children who've been identified with these

         14  problems to go to so that there is alternative

         15  placement for them.

         16                 So, I think the crux of my testimony

         17  is, I welcome the legislation, but we already have

         18  these rules in place.  The issue is enforcement, not

         19  having rules, but as I said in my testimony, what

         20  good are the rules if they're not enforced?  And I

         21  believe that if this legislation is passed, it will

         22  have additional force of law to make sure that these

         23  incidents are reported, because it won't simply end

         24  the non- retaliatory nature, and protections in this

         25  legislation would allow principals, without fear, to
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          2  then make these reports without fear for adverse

          3  evaluation by the Department.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And,

          5  presumably, by giving it force of law, would help to

          6  marshal the resources necessary to respond to the

          7  situations?

          8                 MR. JONES:  I would hope so.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

         10  very much. I think your suggestions are very well

         11  put.  I look forward to working with you on this.

         12                 MR. JONES:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         14  very, very much Ronald Jones, from the UTF.  We're

         15  now going to hear from Brett Schneider, Grissel

         16  Olavarria, Anna- Marie Thompson, Etzion Neuer and

         17  Doug Land.

         18                 Good afternoon, thank you for your

         19  patience. We're very much looking forward to hearing

         20  from you.  In the interest of time, I would just

         21  like to ask everyone to be brief and stick to the

         22  time limit.  Why don't we hear from you in the order

         23  in which I called your name.  If you could just

         24  state your name for the record and if you have a

         25  particular affiliation, that as well.  The button,
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          2  the light has to be off for the microphone to be on.

          3    Thank you.

          4                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  Hi, my name is Brett

          5  Schneider, and I speak to you both from an

          6  association with the Greenwich Village Youth

          7  Council, and as a teacher in the New York City

          8  Department of Education.  I'm here today to speak on

          9  behalf of the proposed legislation prohibiting acts

         10  of harassment at schools.  I'm a fourth generation

         11  New York public school teacher. I am lucky because I

         12  help operate a school that is respectful and

         13  tolerant of diversity.  I'm lucky because the

         14  principal of my school responds to student and

         15  faculty concerns regarding these matters, and he

         16  promotes an atmosphere that is both responsive and

         17  responsible.

         18                 However, luck should not be the

         19  determinate of a harassment- free atmosphere.  It

         20  should be the responsibility of the New York City

         21  Department of Education to provide this for all

         22  students.  In New York City, our successes and

         23  failures as an educational system often merit

         24  national attention.  This City Council and Mayor

         25  have the potential with this legislation to support
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          2  an agenda that will inspire the nation to protect

          3  the physical and mental safety of all of our

          4  children from bias and harassment.

          5                 As a lifelong resident of New York

          6  City, I have been a student in our schools, public,

          7  private and parochial. Back in the fourth grade, I

          8  was punched in our school yard, having no one at my

          9  school willing to address the issue for my mother or

         10  I.  The answer, buy him a punching bag so he can

         11  learn how to defend himself.  That is literally what

         12  the staff member told my mother in front of me.

         13  This motivated me to attend a private middle school.

         14    I was lucky because my family could work extra to

         15  afford that.  However, all students deserve the

         16  right to a free and safe public education.

         17                 Physical and verbal attacks on myself

         18  as a teenager in the streets of the Bronx motivated

         19  my move to Alphabet City at 18.  Though happy as a

         20  resident Downtown, I have only spoken twice in the

         21  last 12 years about those physical attacks.  And I

         22  say that to speak to the fact that the trauma and

         23  the impact of harassment often bears silent with

         24  people no matter what level of education or

         25  empowerment they achieve for themselves.
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          2                 At 19, I got involved with the

          3  Greenwich Village Youth Council, a non- profit, that

          4  spent the last few decades working in Lower

          5  Manhattan.  While working with them and working on

          6  my M.S.W., I helped create a drop- in program for

          7  les/bi/gay and transgender teens, and in that

          8  experience heard from thousands of New York City

          9  teens who had experienced verbal, physical and

         10  mental harassment in their schools.  It wasn't just

         11  hearing about the harassment that was troubling, it

         12  was hearing the absolute lack of trust that these

         13  incidents had engendered in the school system, which

         14  was meant to educate and shape these young people

         15  into strong, compassionate and ethical adults.

         16                 These students had been punched or

         17  shoved in hallways, addressed with slurs in

         18  classrooms, had notes shoved in their lockers.  But

         19  schools had no reporting requirement.  So, each

         20  incident was treated like a rarity or exception, not

         21  worth making a big deal about.  The bullies behind

         22  these attacks got the message their actions would be

         23  tolerated by the larger school community, as did

         24  those who were attacked.

         25                 The cumulative efforts of this
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          2  harassment created a post- traumatic stress in many

          3  of these students, and often turn them off to

          4  finishing high school, or even considering going on

          5  to college.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  If I can ask

          7  you to sum up.

          8                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         10                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  When I began teaching

         11  eight years ago, I had the opportunity to work with

         12  students from all five boroughs, and I can tell you

         13  that our school is responsive, but it's far from a

         14  uniformed thing.

         15                 The Chancellor sets the tone for

         16  schools throughout the City, but in fact, and in

         17  operations, principals set the tone for the school

         18  community at their school, and I completely support

         19  the various aspects of the proposed legislation,

         20  including that it mandate that principals be the

         21  arbiter and be able to work with their designees,

         22  people like myself, who have a simple on- line

         23  computer system that already exists for reporting of

         24  other types of incidents, that would allow us to

         25  easily track and report these incidences and prevent
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          2  further harassment in the schools.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

          4                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  Thank you.

          5                 MS. OLAVARRIA: Hi, my name is Grissel

          6  Olavarria. I have a flexible schedule now, which

          7  allowed me to be here, because I left high school,

          8  the high school that I was attending over a year

          9  ago, because I was being harassed for my sexual

         10  orientation.  I came out as a lesbian and there was

         11  a lot of other lesbians in the school that were out

         12  that were not being harassed, but I was the only one

         13  mainly harassed, because, I guess, I look

         14  stereotypically lesbian.  I didn't follow, you know,

         15  society's standards of what a female should look

         16  like, and I was that kind of target.  That gave the

         17  students in the school an invitation to basically

         18  harass me, name call me.

         19                 Students like me hear the word faggot

         20  and dike and other gay epithets more than 20 times a

         21  day, and that is a real discouragement for students

         22  who are supposed to have a safe environment for

         23  schools, who are supposed to be there and focus on

         24  their education, are instead focusing on them being

         25  not unsafe and trying to protect themselves in ways
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          2  that prevent them from continuing their education,

          3  like I, unfortunately, did.

          4                 And I think that this bill would

          5  definitely, you know, save the education of a lot of

          6  kids like me, and, you know, cut down the dropout

          7  rates and, you know, give people, you know, the

          8  ability to have a safe environment, which they

          9  deserve.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         11                 MS. THOMAS:  Thank you, good morning

         12   --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Madam Chair,

         14  the, and I, we appreciate every witness, but the

         15  last witness, Grissel, has been a participant in the

         16  preparations leading up to this bill, and her

         17  courage and her determination to take a bad

         18  situation and make it better for everyone else is

         19  truly admirable.  On behalf of the, all of us, we

         20  really appreciate it, and we wish you nothing but

         21  the best and great success, which we know, you keep

         22  this up, you will obtain that.  Thank you so very

         23  much for being a role model to all of us.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         25                 MS. THOMAS:  Thank you.  Good
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          2  morning.  My name is Anna- Maria Thomas.  I'm a

          3  teacher in the New York public school system.

          4  Nothing is more important than making schools safe

          5  and welcoming places for all students, who often

          6  face tremendous hostility from their peers and

          7  teachers.  Many teachers today face classrooms with

          8  diverse student populations and expected to teach,

          9  to be culturally sensitive and to have skills for

         10  teaching a wide range of students.  This is not

         11  happening because the curriculum does not

         12  acknowledge student and family diversity.

         13                 Creating schools and classrooms that

         14  put student diversity at the center requires

         15  changing teacher education training, and the way

         16  teachers presently receive support.  We have much

         17  which needs to be done for those students who may be

         18  physically challenged.  There are only a few schools

         19  that address accessibility for the disabled.  By

         20  attending professional development training for

         21  educators, which I did this Summer, we will be, we

         22  will be able to gain special tools, strategies and

         23  interrupt, for interrupting students' name calling

         24  and bullying behaviors.

         25                 According to Dr. Newberg, those
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          2  students who are the subject of name calling and

          3  bullying in schools, suffer many years later the

          4  effects of such experiences.  The ACLU innovated a

          5  program called Making Schools Safe, the ADL has also

          6  initiated A World of Difference, which is where I

          7  went this Summer for training on biases.  Both of

          8  these programs can be used to assist the teachers

          9  who need support to make sure bullying and name

         10  calling stops.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         12                 MR. NEUER:  Madam Chair, Etzion

         13  Neuer, and I'm the Deputy Director of the New York

         14  Office of the Anti- Defamation League.  Beside me is

         15  Douglas Land, who is the Co- Chair of our Public

         16  Policy Committee.  For those of you who don't know

         17  the Anti- Defamation League, now in it's 90th year,

         18  was founded to stop the defamation of the Jewish

         19  people and to secure justice and fair treatment for

         20  all.  Now one of the nation's leading civil rights

         21  and human relations agencies, ADL fights all forms

         22  of bigotry, defends democratic ideals and protects

         23  civil rights for all.

         24                 Bullying and name calling, once

         25  accepted, as unavoidable traditions in school
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          2  districts, are increasingly being seen as serious

          3  issues.  With current studies indicating that over

          4  16 percent of all U.S. Students have been bullied by

          5  other students during the current school term, the

          6  Federal Safe and Drug Free Schools Program is

          7  recommending that schools take steps to address

          8  these concerns.  The Dignity in All Schools Act

          9  attempts to do just that.  The Dignity in All

         10  Schools Act and its noble effort to create a policy

         11  prohibiting harassment seeks to create a healthy

         12  school setting.  The Act recognizes the impact that

         13  name calling and harassment have on the educational

         14  experience of all students.

         15                 ADL, through it's A World of

         16  Difference diversity education institute, which got

         17  an unexpected plug about a minute ago, firmly

         18  believes that safe and respectable school

         19  environments are essential for student learning to

         20  take place. We recognize that students themselves

         21  are powerful resources available to schools

         22  achieving this goal, and we strive, through

         23  programming, to equip students with the skills and

         24  the abilities to help motivate other students to

         25  reflect on their behaviors and to make changes
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          2  toward respect and fairness.

          3                 The Dignity in All Schools Act calls

          4  for the creation of guidelines for training school

          5  employees and the implementation of guidelines to be

          6  used in student presentations about conduct and

          7  harassment issues.

          8                 The ADL is committed to raising

          9  awareness about the issues of prejudice,

         10  discrimination, and the harm they inflict on

         11  individuals in society.  We are supportive of these

         12  attempts to provide experiential training and to

         13  equip participants to live and work successfully and

         14  civilly in a diverse society.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.  I

         16  wanted to thank you for the testimony, all of you,

         17  it's helpful, and again I want to reiterate that it

         18  is disappointing that the Department of Education

         19  isn't here to hear from you and your direct

         20  experience.  I wanted to ask Grissel Olavarria.  Am

         21  I getting that right?

         22                 MS. OLAVARRIA:  Yea, Olavarria.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And also to

         24  thank you for coming forward, because not everyone,

         25  it takes a lot of courage to do so, and obviously
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          2  it's helpful to hear from students directly, who are

          3  experiencing what we're trying to address.  I was

          4  wondering if you could say anything about the

          5  adults' responses, and given what you heard from the

          6  Department of Education, whether you think, or in

          7  what way their responses were inadequate, given your

          8  experience.

          9                 MS. OLAVARRIA:  Definitely.  The

         10  harassment that I received I tried to fix myself.

         11  But then I went to a counselor, which did not have

         12  the resources that I needed, to go find help outside

         13  of school, or even inside school.  In the school we

         14  had a GSA, which was a Gay Straight Alliance, and

         15  that was no help for me because my school, wasn't my

         16  sexual orientation, it was, you know, my problem

         17  wasn't my sexual orientation, it was everybody's

         18  else's problem.

         19                 And, so what the, what the principal

         20  told me was to have mediation with the people who

         21  directly harassed me.  And I thought that, I didn't

         22  agree to it, definitely not, because I thought that

         23  my problem wasn't to direct people that were

         24  harassing me, it was the people's mentality now that

         25  they think that they can let this go on.  And I was
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          2  sure that just because one person was doing

          3  mediation with me, it would not change the whole,

          4  you know, structure of what people think is right

          5  and wrong and what gives them the right to harass

          6  people, especially the LGBT community.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Mediation

          8  would seem a rather unhelpful response to bullying

          9  and harassment, and the mediation was proposed by

         10  the guidance counselor or the principal?

         11                 MS. OLAVARRIA:  The principal.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  The

         13  principal.

         14                 MS. OLAVARRIA:  Yea.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Council

         16  Member Robert Jackson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you,

         18  and I want to thank all of you for coming in and

         19  giving testimony.  It's important that we hear from,

         20  besides the Administration, people that have been

         21  impacted directly and from advocates in the field.

         22  So, I appreciate all of you coming out.

         23                 I wanted to ask Anna- Maria Thomas,

         24  as an educator, as a teacher, and I think your name

         25  is Brett?
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          2                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yea, I

          4  wanted to really ask you, I heard Ben Tucker and the

          5  other representative from the Department of

          6  Education talking about that they already have

          7  training in schools already that address this

          8  particular issue, and in essence, giving the

          9  impression that they have rules and regulations in

         10  place that deal with this and that if anything -- I

         11  don't know if you were here to listen to their

         12  testimony, if anything, the State law, bill, that

         13  they support would address all of these issues. Even

         14  though, I believe, the bill has been out there for

         15  over two years, and really, it's not a law.  And, in

         16  essence, they were saying, you know, let them deal

         17  with it, and since, if they, you know, make a law,

         18  it will overrule our local law.

         19                 So, I wanted to know, in your

         20  opinion, as educators working in the field, do you

         21  feel that the rules and regulations in place now are

         22  sufficient enough to address the needs as you see

         23  the problem is, in the schools today?

         24                 MS. THOMAS:  I had a young lady who

         25  came to me and stated that a teacher continually
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          2  made derogatory terms towards her as a lesbian in

          3  the class.  This was a teacher.  And, she asked, I

          4  can't go back to class.  I went to the social

          5  worker, and the social worker handed me a

          6  Chancellor's Memoranda, Memorandum, it was 830A, I

          7  believe, was the numbers.  It stated directly on

          8  this paper that every student at the beginning of

          9  the term was to be handed this Memorandum, that all

         10  parents should be given this information as to what

         11  they were to do in time of any type of harassment

         12  that went on in the school.  This was May of this,

         13  not, 2003, May, and I had not seen this paper.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And how long

         15  have you been employed with the system?

         16                 MS. THOMAS:  In this particular

         17  school, I've been working there for 20, over 25

         18  years, and I have not seen that paper.  Now direct

         19  contrary to that, is I'm in a new school, starting

         20  in September, and the first week we were in school,

         21  we were handed this Memorandum by the principal, and

         22  we actually had a workshop, where the teachers, this

         23  was September, Thursday, of second, third, fourth,

         24  September 4th of 2003.  We were given this

         25  Memorandum, which existed, I believe, since  '84, I
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          2  believe, the original.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  --  '85

          4                 MS. THOMAS:  '85

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yea.  But

          6  now, the code of conduct was supposed to be given

          7  out to every student in the school system.  Have you

          8  given out, have they given you, as a teacher, the

          9  code of conduct to distribute to your class? --

         10                 MS. THOMAS:  -- No.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- And I ask

         12  both of you as educators.

         13                 MS. THOMAS:  No, I've never heard of

         14  it.  I've never seen it.

         15                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  The code of conduct

         16  pamphlet, which I think they refer to, in most

         17  schools, is a relatively obscure pamphlet that they

         18  do suggest getting out at the beginning of a school

         19  year.  Certainly, for example, this year, we've

         20  received no new copies.  So it would rely on

         21  completely finding preexisting copies that are maybe

         22  there from last year.

         23                 This document rarely gets any focus

         24  or attention in classrooms and in home rooms, and

         25  most parents and students, if you asked them about
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          2  them, have no idea that it exists.  It's simply a

          3  pamphlet that they publish every so often, and I

          4  would also add that most of the other kinds of basic

          5  rules and infringements rarely get enforcement

          6  follow- up anyway.

          7                 And so, the suggestion this morning

          8  that more intense issues that are not even mentioned

          9  in that book, like harassment based on sexual

         10  orientation, gender identity, et cetera, to even

         11  suggest that those things are being tackled in a

         12  meaningful way, is kind of ridiculous, because the

         13  most basic of anti- mugging, anti- punching, anti-

         14  violence things are not getting done in the

         15  classrooms or in administration.  So, that just

         16  seems like a bogus follow- up from the Department of

         17  Ed.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, then,

         19  based on your experience as educators, even though

         20  they allege, no, not allege, they state that there's

         21  rules and regulations in place that effectively

         22  address all of the bullying, harassment and all of

         23  the slurs and other negative aspects of, that this

         24  bill talks about, you would feel that instituting

         25  this law is an appropriate step, considering that
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          2  the law, the rules and regulations are not being

          3  enforced effectively system- wide?

          4                 MS. THOMAS:  Exactly, the word is

          5  enforce.  The schools are not enforcing these rules.

          6    Therefore, they don't exist.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, Madam

          8  Chair, I want to thank you for allowing me to ask

          9  these questions.  I mean, I was asked, why is it

         10  necessary to institute a law when rules and

         11  regulations already exist.  Well, if the rules and

         12  regulations exist, and they're not being enforced,

         13  and if by instituting a law, we can make it happen,

         14  then I want to make it happen. I just want --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And just for

         18  the record by the hand nods, I take it the teachers

         19  on the panel agree with that sentiment, that this

         20  would help you do your jobs?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I think that

         22   --

         23                 MS. THOMAS:  -- Without a doubt.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Council

         25  Member Jackson, you've put your finger on one of the
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          2  rationales for this law, which is the rules and

          3  regulations appear to be insufficient to communicate

          4  to our school system, that we're very serious, and

          5  so it requires elevating to the next level.  We are

          6  still going to have a job to do, as, I know you know

          7  all too well, that there are many unenforced laws,

          8  and so we haven't solved the problem until the

          9  experience that you have, had, Grissel and other

         10  teachers and so forth doesn't occur.  Then, we will

         11  have done our job.  But, thank you very, very much

         12  for your testimony.

         13                 We're now going to hear from Tony

         14  O'Rourke Quintana, Pauline Park, Terry Boggis and

         15  Emma Jordan- Simpson, and Phyllis Steinberg.  If we

         16  could begin in the order in which you were called,

         17  and please state your name and affiliation, if

         18  that's relevant, for the record.

         19                 MR. QUINTANA:  Thank you.  Tony

         20  O'Rourke Quintana with GLSEN, the Gay Lesbian and

         21  Straight Education Network. Okay.  I have a

         22  statement that I was going to read off, and instead

         23  of doing that -- it's in with the written testimony.

         24  I just want to point out something that, an irony

         25  that's not lost on me.
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          2                 In the room next to us is the ACRES

          3  (phonetic) program.  It is a program that, as I

          4  understand it, takes young people from New York City

          5  around the country to understand the history of the

          6  Civil Rights Movement.  The ACRES program is

          7  actually a member organization in the New York State

          8  Dignity for All Students Coalition, which makes, it

          9  made up of about 176 organizations at this point

         10  from around the State.  Here in the City, I think,

         11  we have 60 some odd of those organizations

         12  represented in the coalition.  And, I just want to

         13  point out that, you know, I think they are the

         14  inheritors of the Civil Rights Movements.

         15                 These young people are the ones that

         16  we leave whatever we do, you know, what decisions we

         17  make now, we leave a world based on those decisions,

         18  and, for me, it is so central to the work that we're

         19  doing today because when, a few years back, I had

         20  the opportunity to work for some other program out

         21  of Detroit, which is where I'm from, through the

         22  Raymond and Rosa Parks Center, and I got the

         23  opportunity to meet Rosa Parks in person, absolute

         24  amazing experience, and get to know her, and I think

         25  that the legacy of those folks from the Civil Rights
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          2  Movements has been that these changes need to

          3  permeate all parts of our lives.

          4                 And I think, more than anything, the

          5  educational system, and this is an opportunity for

          6  the City Council to do that.  And one last thing is,

          7  I would, I just wish, as you said, that the

          8  Department of Education people were still here, so I

          9  could take them over there and have them say that

         10  they don't want this legislation passed to the face

         11  of those young people.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         13                 MS. PARK:  Madam Chair, my name is

         14  Pauline Park. I'm Co- Chair of the New York

         15  Association for Gender Rights Advocacy.  NYAGRA is

         16  the first State-wide transgender advocacy

         17  organization in New York.

         18                 What I'd like to do is submit my

         19  written testimony into the record, and with your

         20  permission, depart from that to make a few

         21  extemporaneous remarks, including comments on some

         22  of the things that the Administration officials said

         23  earlier in the hearing.

         24                 First of all, I really appreciate

         25  Council Member Quinn's mentioning Intro. 24.  As you
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          2  know, last April 24th, the Council with your

          3  support, the support of everyone on the dais there,

          4  passed the transgender rights bill into law, which

          5  was signed by the Mayor on April 30th.  It is

          6  shocking to me that this Administration does not

          7  even seem to realize that this law had been passed

          8  and signed by the Mayor who heads it, and does not

          9  seem to take seriously the issue of discrimination

         10  and harassment based on gender identity and

         11  expression.

         12                 Gender identity and expression is not

         13  simply about transsexuals or even those who identify

         14  openly as transgendered. As I like to say, there

         15  aren't too many post- op transsexuals in grade

         16  school.  We are not talking about that.  We are

         17  talking about people who are harassed based on how

         18  they express their gender or how that gender is

         19  really perceived, which includes a large number of

         20  relatively feminine boys, masculine girls.

         21                 The last thing I want to say is

         22  really that it is inexcusable for the Administration

         23  to say they don't support this bill because there's

         24  a State bill pending.  I represent NIAGRA on the

         25  State DASA Coalition Steering Committee, and it
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          2  would be extremely helpful in Albany to get that

          3  bill passed to see the New York City Council pass

          4  this bill.  It would give tremendous momentum and it

          5  is vitally important for all the students who are

          6  being harassed today on the basis of gender identity

          7  expression and anything else, to see this bill

          8  passed in order give momentum to the State Dignity

          9  for All Students Act.  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         11                 MS. BOGGIS:  Good afternoon, my name

         12  is Terry Boggis and I'm the Director of Center Kids,

         13  which is the family program of the Lesbian, Gay,

         14  Bisexual and Transgender Community Center here in

         15  Manhattan.  We serve over 2,000 families in

         16  metropolitan New York, families headed by lesbian,

         17  gay, bisexual and transgender parents, families who

         18  look different from the established norm.  I'm also

         19  a lesbian mother of a 15- year old son, who attends

         20  public high school in the Bronx.

         21                 Our children go to school in an

         22  atmosphere absolutely toxic with anti- gay

         23  sentiment.  My son hears the word faggot, queer, and

         24  homo countless times during every school day, not

         25  necessarily used against him personally, but used
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          2  to, but used against everyone and everything

          3  considered substandard, stupid, ugly and otherwise

          4  wrong.  When he is challenged, when he challenged

          5  another boy for using this language recently, the

          6  boy confided that he planned to be a gay basher when

          7  he gets older.

          8                 In my work, I hear from parents every

          9  day, parents whose children are struggling with

         10  victimization in school. Parents like the lesbian

         11  mother with two elementary school aged sons, who are

         12  being told their mom "looks like a man."  Boys who

         13  are now fighting in school and begging for

         14  permission not to go anymore.  Or calls from

         15  guidance counselors, one who phoned asked for a

         16  better environment for a sixth grader, now

         17  hospitalized for the second time for depression, who

         18  says he's not gay, but is a girl, and is teased

         19  mercilessly in school.

         20                 I want what any parent wants, and

         21  what I'm sure you all want, good schools where our

         22  kids begin the process of good citizenship, where

         23  they can continue, a process they can continue

         24  throughout their lives.  But we won't have good

         25  schools until we directly address the name calling,
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          2  the harassment and violence towards kids who are

          3  different or perceived to be different.  Once we do,

          4  young people will be much better able to show up at

          5  school, focus on their work, feel safe and welcome

          6  and succeed academically and otherwise.

          7                 Regardless of how well we prepare our

          8  kids academically, we fail them if we don't help

          9  them prepare to live and work cooperatively in a

         10  diverse society.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         12                 MS. JORDAN- SIMPSON:     Good

         13  afternoon.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Good

         15  afternoon.

         16                 MS. JORDAN- SIMPSON:  My name is Emma

         17  Jordan Simpson, and I'm the Executive Director of

         18  Girls Incorporated of New York City.  In the Spring,

         19  we asked girls, all girls across the City, to tell

         20  us what for them would be a safe school.  And they

         21  said to us that a school is safe for girls when

         22  girls have a person in an authority in whom they can

         23  confide, guys do not surround us in the hallways and

         24  touch us, we're able to walk the halls without

         25  having to worry about getting into fights, we're
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          2  able to be ourselves and not be judged or threatened

          3  because of who we are or how we dress, when we're

          4  not pushed around by guys who think they're better

          5  than us, when we have the same rights and privileges

          6  as everyone else and not be singled out.  A school

          7  is safe for girls when everything is fair for

          8  everyone.  That's what girls told us about what it

          9  means to be in a safe school.

         10                 We know in this City, to some degree,

         11  the statistics for adults who commit crimes against

         12  children.  And because we know, to some degree, what

         13  those statistics are, we are in a position to change

         14  those situations.  What's truly disconcerting to

         15  anybody who cares about young people is that while

         16  we can measure, and to some degree do something

         17  about the crimes committed by adults in our schools,

         18  we have absolutely no reliable way of measuring, and

         19  therefore, addressing the sex crimes, harassment and

         20  assault against girls committed by their peers.

         21  This is the student- to- student violence.

         22                 And we asked the Academy for

         23  Educational Development to study this issue for us

         24  and their conclusion to us, in 2001, and if this

         25  situation has changed, we would be very glad to hear
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          2  about it, but their conclusion was that there is no

          3  reliable mechanism in place, in the New York City

          4  public school system to collect the incidences of

          5  sexual harassment in schools.

          6                 This is a critical nuance on this

          7  issue that we're talking about here today, because

          8  as this educational system is now undergoing the

          9  much needed reorganization it needs to serve all of

         10  our students.  We cannot forget that all of the

         11  students depend on us to lead by proactively

         12  addressing the issues of sexual assault awareness,

         13  bullying and sexual harassment prevention, and

         14  raising the bar for what's deemed to be a safe

         15  learning environment, and Girls Inc. Of New York

         16  City firmly supports this bill, and we believe that

         17  this is the, this is the way to go.

         18                 As we all know, the most effective

         19  way to ensure that an issue remains an issue is to

         20  ignore it, or to assign no one to it to monitor it.

         21  This bill actually assigns this issue to the

         22  principal, and requires that the principal be a

         23  leader in that regard.

         24                 Incidences of peer- to- peer sexual

         25  assault, other than the incidences that come to the
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          2  attention of the news media, do not systematically

          3  appear on the radar screens of people entrusted to

          4  make New York City schools a safe place to be.

          5                 Hostile Hallways, which is a report

          6  that was issued in 2001, clearly tells us that

          7  sexual harassment is a part of everyday life for

          8  boys and girls at school.  And this report asserts

          9  that, on a national level, the harassment often

         10  occurs under teachers' noses.  It begins in

         11  elementary school and it's traumatic to both boys

         12  and girls.

         13                 This Spring, when we held our forum

         14  to address public school safety, the most depressing

         15  point of that forum was to hear an assistant

         16  principal in our school system say that not only is

         17  she not trained to address the student- to- student

         18  violence that happens, but she's not supported,

         19  she's not prepared and she's, to deal with the

         20  student- to- student harassment, and she's not held

         21  accountable.  She's concerned because she's a human

         22  being, but she's not supported, prepared, trained,

         23  and she's definitely not held accountable for it.

         24                 When we began looking at the lives of

         25  New York City girls and researching how they
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          2  experience life in the City, we heard their voices

          3  very clearly, and even when we couldn't find the

          4  hard data, we talked to them and they told us how

          5  this issue hit them very hard.  In focus groups,

          6  girls from all five boroughs, in large and small

          7  public schools, all kinds of girls, recounted the

          8  many times that they felt threatened and harassed in

          9  schools, and in too many cases, their concerns were

         10  just not addressed by school personnel.

         11                 Last year when there was a spike in

         12  rapes, Public Advocate, Betsy Gotbaum prompted the

         13  recommendation that we include sexual harassment and

         14  awareness and prevention education in all high

         15  schools, and we recommended that we, we do that, but

         16  we also start in elementary school, because after

         17  hearing a nine year old girl enrolled in one of our

         18  programs, our Action for Safety program, describe

         19  how the boys in her school routinely played a game

         20  called booty tag, where the little boys groping the

         21  girls behinds, and after seeing the obvious

         22  discomfort on her face, this little girl's face, and

         23  seeing the tragic beginnings of what I thought were

         24  the acceptance of this kind of treatment, that this

         25  is just what it means to be a student in New York
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          2  City.               We know we have to get important

          3  messages to boys and girls regardless of their

          4  sexuality long before high school. Messages like, no

          5  one deserves to be the victim of harassment and

          6  violence, lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender,

          7  and questioning students do not have to accept

          8  violence as a normal part of their educational

          9  experience.  Girls have a right to be safe and

         10  unmolested in school and boys have a right to be

         11  safe and unmolested in school.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         13                 MS. STEINBERG:  Hello, my name is

         14  Phyllis Steinberg.  I'm Director of New York City

         15  Advocacy for PFLAG New York City.  I'm a former PTA

         16  President.  I'm a former School Leadership Team

         17  Member and I'm a former School Safety Committee, and

         18  I've see what goes on in schools.  Please help

         19  prevent our children from going through the agony of

         20  bullying.  Why is it that harassment and

         21  discrimination is illegal in the work place and yet

         22  it is allowed to occur in our schools?

         23                 It's not okay for girls to be called

         24  ho (sic) and it's not okay for boys to be called

         25  fag.  It's not okay to be tormented because you're
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          2  fat, disabled, too smart or not smart enough.  Did

          3  you know that experts from the Secret Service,

          4  called in to examine the Columbine High School

          5  incident, as well as other shootings, found that

          6  most shooters had been bullied before they chose to

          7  attack their tormentors?  The consequences of

          8  bullying are enormous.

          9                 Let's examine the harassment toward

         10  the LGBT students.  In public high schools, 97

         11  percent of students hear homophobic remarks

         12  regularly from their peers.  53 percent reported

         13  hearing it from school staff.  41 percent of the

         14  LGBT students do not feel safe because of their

         15  sexual orientation. Gay teens are four times more

         16  likely to be threatened with a weapon at school than

         17  heterosexual teens.  28 percent drop out of school

         18  because of harassment, and we saw someone testify to

         19  that today.  22 percent skip school because they

         20  felt unsafe in school or on the way to school.

         21  These teens are also at higher risk for mental

         22  health problems.  They are two to six more times

         23  likely to attempt suicide than the children who are

         24  heterosexual.

         25                 Bullying undermines a student's
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          2  ability to focus. How can a student maximize his

          3  education and become a productive member of society,

          4  when his ability to focus is being compromised?  And

          5  it's not just the students who suffer. Teachers and

          6  staff are also at risk for becoming targets of

          7  harassment.  They can be harassed by peers as well

          8  as by students.  If the harassment is not dealt

          9  with, students get a clear message that even adults

         10  cannot protect them from bias attacks.  Let me

         11  finish up here.

         12                 Every child deserves to be treated

         13  with respect and to be protected from violations of

         14  his basic human rights, as do the staff members.  I

         15  urge you to support legislation to protect school,

         16  students and school staff from harassment and

         17  discrimination in our schools.  Help make our

         18  schools safe.  And let me point out to you, that

         19  right here engraved in your ceiling, you have

         20  something written by Jefferson, equal and exact

         21  justice to all.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         23  very, very much. I guess I've said this a few times,

         24  but it's truly unfortunate that the Department of

         25  Education isn't here to hear what those of you
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          2  who've been thinking about this issue in various

          3  forms and various incarnations, for many years at

          4  this point, and have developed a wealth of

          5  expertise.  I don't have any particular questions,

          6  so I want to turn to my colleagues to see if they

          7  do. We have been joined also by my colleague,

          8  Council Member Mike Nelson from Brooklyn.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you,

         10  Madam Chair.  I want to thank you for appearing and

         11  everybody else who came and is concerned about this

         12  problem, and all my colleagues who put this all

         13  together.  This has been an on- going problem for

         14  many years.  I'm not that terribly far removed from

         15  being in school. I saw what goes on, obviously, and

         16  it's very important also because our society and our

         17  educational system is so adversely affected by this

         18  bullyism, this harassment, whether it's physical or

         19  verbal, as well.  And obviously, nothing was in

         20  place to deal with this, and that's what this is

         21  primarily about.

         22                 Those little boys and girls who

         23  create this problem become bigger children, so-

         24  called adults later on, and the situation can even

         25  get more dangerous as well, notwithstanding the
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          2  psychological effect it has on you when you are

          3  growing up, and you're in a position like that.

          4  There's nothing manly about calling somebody a

          5  derogatory name.  Those words that were mentioned

          6  before, or unwanted groping.  So, again, I thank my

          7  colleagues for trying to plug this hole in our

          8  social contract, which has, again, not been dealt

          9  with before. Thank you.  Thank you Madam Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  We also, I

         11  don't think there are any more questions, so I thank

         12  you very, very much for your time and for your

         13  testimony.  We will be, obviously, coming back to

         14  this issue.  This won't be the last hearing on this

         15  topic, and we look forward to working with you as we

         16  go through the legislative process.  Thank you very

         17  much --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- Excuse

         19  Madam Chair, I just, no, no, no, I just need to add

         20  to your remarks, because I've had the privilege of

         21  working with just about each of these witnesses and

         22  leading up along with Council Member Quinn and

         23  yourself, and leading up to this hearing, and their

         24  work and their commitment to the issue has inspired

         25  me and I just want to personally thank each of you
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          2  and say how much I look forward to getting the job

          3  done.  Thank you very much.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I just want

          6  to mention that we will incorporate into the record

          7  a statement from Assembly Member Dick Gottfried,

          8  who, unfortunately, couldn't be here today, but

          9  wanted to express his support of the bill.

         10                 I noticed that Senator Duane is in

         11  the audience, and I was wondering if I could prevail

         12  upon you just to join us for one minute.  As someone

         13  who has been a leader on DASA at the State level,

         14  there were some suggestions, your name came up at

         15  this hearing, and I was wondering if you could tell

         16  us, the Department of Education seemed to suggest

         17  that they had been working fast and furiously with

         18  you on the State level, in support of your bill, and

         19  I was wondering if that is accurate? If you could

         20  just state your name for the record.

         21                 SENATOR DUANE:  Sure.  Tom Duane, New

         22  York State Senator, 29th District.  I have never

         23  heard from the Department of Education, ever.  And

         24  I, do they have a lobbyist in Albany?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  They do.
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          2                 SENATOR DUANE:  Not the Mayor's

          3  Office itself, but they have their own person?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Yes, they do.

          5                 SENATOR DUANE:  I don't know who that

          6  is.  I'm sure they're very nice, but I've never met

          7  them.  I can tell you that I believe Assembly Member

          8  Sanders, the Assembly sponsor of the bill, wrote

          9  maybe to the Department of Education, and I believe

         10  they wrote back to him.  I don't know.  I actually,

         11  you know, this came up rather quickly, and I was

         12  going to try to get a copy of those letters, but I

         13  can't, but I can supply that to the Committee.  But,

         14  I would be more than happy to work with them --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- You

         16  wouldn't --

         17                 SENATOR DUANE:  -- On the bill --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Refuse to

         19  meet with them on this important topic?

         20                 SENATOR DUANE:  Council Member, I

         21  work with everybody.  And I, you know, it would be

         22  very, their help would be really, very important,

         23  both legislatively and things that we could do with

         24  the State education, which I'm also unaware of

         25  anything they've been doing with them because, as I
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          2  understand it, they say that they think all of this

          3  should be done on the State level.  But I don't know

          4  of anything they've done with Superintendent Mills

          5  (phonetic) or, I just, I haven't heard of anything

          6  to do with that.  So, I'd say they're nowhere in

          7  Albany right now on this bill.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I think my

          9  colleague, Council Member Gerson has a one last

         10  question or comment.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I can't

         12  resist the opportunity to formally interrogate

         13  Senator Duane in this.  I've been waiting for this.

         14  No, Senator, and thank you for all your work on

         15  this.  Is there any reason that you could think of

         16  why we should hold up the City bill in order to get

         17  the State bill passed?

         18                 SENATOR DUANE:  Absolutely not.  As

         19  you know, New York City passed a non- discrimination

         20  bill way before the State did, and the same is true

         21  of localities around the State, some of which have a

         22  safe schools, that's very inclusive policy, and so

         23  for this body to pass such legislation would be

         24  terrific.

         25                 And I might also say that if the
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          2  Department of Education cared so deeply about this

          3  issue, they could have done an awful lot on the

          4  issue so far, which, as you may or may not know, I

          5  teach a class in a public high school once a week,

          6  and to my knowledge, the Board of Education really

          7  is, within each of the schools, absolutely nowhere

          8  on this issue at all, unless the school family

          9  itself takes it up.  But, there's no leadership on

         10  the part of the Department of Education.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

         12  very much.

         13                 SENATOR DUANE:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Senator

         15  Duane, thank you for your pioneering work on this

         16  issue and thanks for joining us.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And I just

         18  wanted to tell you, your co- teacher of that class

         19  was one of the teachers who came forward and

         20  testified today.

         21                 SENATOR DUANE:  Oh, Brett came in?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Yes.

         23                 SENATOR DUANE:  He watches over to

         24  make sure I don't do anything that I shouldn't.  But

         25  I think I might do things I'm not supposed to do
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          2  anyway, but what are they going to do? --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  -- We should

          4  stop with your testimony on the record now Senator,

          5  thank you.

          6                 SENATOR DUANE:  Okay, thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I'm going to

          8  call this meeting to a conclusion.  Thank you.

          9                 (Meeting adjourned at 10:11 a.m.)

         10                 (Following written testimony was read

         11  into the record)

         12

         13  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

         14  EMPIRE STATE PRIDE AGENDA

         15

         16                 The Empire State Pride Agenda, New

         17  York's statewide non- partisan lesbian and gay civil

         18  rights and political advocacy organization,

         19  appreciates the New York City Council's efforts to

         20  address the problem of bias harassment in schools.

         21  We share its commitment to a safe learning

         22  environment free from bias harassment, and urge

         23  passage of the Dignity in All Schools Act as a tool

         24  that will help create that environment for ALL of

         25  New York City's students.
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          2                 The Pride Agenda acts as Co-

          3  Facilitator of the Dignity for All Students

          4  Coalition, an alliance of over 170 groups from

          5  around the state representing teachers, students,

          6  parents, principals, superintendents, counselors,

          7  people of faith, civil rights advocates and

          8  concerned citizens committed to securing state

          9  measures to protect students from harassment in

         10  schools based on actual or perceived race, national

         11  origin, ethnic group, religion, mental or physical

         12  disability, sexual orientation, gender (including

         13  gender identity and expression) and sex.  Through

         14  our work on the Coalition, we know that New York's

         15  schools need measures to prevent and respond to bias

         16  harassment in schools because every day students are

         17  marginalized with taunts and even physical abuse

         18  because of all kinds of difference.

         19                 According to the American Association

         20  of University Women, 85 percent of female students

         21  report having experienced some kind of harassment in

         22  school.  A study by the Safe Schools Coalition of

         23  Washington State shows that 43 percent of students

         24  report having been the target of offensive racial

         25  comments or attacks at school.  In the wake of
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          2  September 11, the Muslim Public Affairs Council

          3  found that the majority of the incidents of anti-

          4  Arab and anti- Muslim harassment and threats across

          5  the nation are occurring in junior high or high

          6  schools. The Massachusetts Governor's Commission on

          7  Gay and Lesbian Youth found that 97 percent of high

          8  school students report regularly hearing homophobic

          9  remarks.

         10                 Whether a school will be free from

         11  bias harassment goes directly to whether that school

         12  will be conducive to learning.  Particularly at a

         13  time when New York is implementing rigorous academic

         14  standards for our students, we need to be sure that

         15  learning can take place in our schools.  But no

         16  student will be able to learn algebra if he or she

         17  is worried about being attacked or taunted in the

         18  halls between classes.  On the issue of protecting

         19  students from bias harassment, as much as any other,

         20  no New York student can be left behind.

         21                 While the effect that bias harassment

         22  has on learning is an important consideration, bias

         23  harassment is first and foremost a school safety

         24  issue.  Schools cannot be truly safe if students are

         25  left unprotected from bias harassment.
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          2                 Clearly, New York would benefit from

          3  a statewide law addressing the topic of bias

          4  harassment.  In 2001, New York attempted to respond

          5  on a statewide basis to tragedies like Columbine

          6  with the Project SAVE School Safety legislation

          7  which provided an invitation for schools to address

          8  the problem of bias harassment through their Student

          9  Codes of Conduct.  But Project SAVE was only that:

         10  An invitation.  While the law opened the door for

         11  schools to address safety issues like bias

         12  harassment, it did nothing to require the issue be

         13  addressed.  So even after Project SAVE, there is

         14  nothing to fill the gap that still exists in New

         15  York law: There is still no comprehensive statewide

         16  protection from bias harassment in schools anywhere

         17  in New York law.

         18                 New York needs a comprehensive state

         19  law like the Dignity for All Students Act to make

         20  sure that every school attempt to prevent incidences

         21  of bias harassment.  Fortunately the state

         22  legislature seems to be moving closer to passing

         23  such legislation, with both chambers for two years

         24  now passing bills by overwhelmingly bipartisan

         25  majorities to address bias harassment.  While a
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          2  final agreement is yet to be reached, the two

          3  chambers seem to be closer than ever before.

          4                 Fortunately, while waiting for action

          5  from the state, some localities across New York have

          6  addressed the issue on their own.  In addition to

          7  New York City, dozens of other cities, towns and

          8  villages including Albany, Buffalo, East Hampton,

          9  Huevelton, Rochester, Saratoga Springs, and Yonkers

         10  have implemented comprehensive anti- discrimination

         11  and harassment policies for their schools.

         12                 Policies against bias harassment are

         13  only the first necessary action for local school

         14  districts to take, however.  It is important for

         15  localities like New York City to ensure that their

         16  schools not only have comprehensive, explicit

         17  policies to protect students from bias harassment,

         18  but also that those policies are made a living part

         19  of the culture of their schools.  The Dignity for

         20  All Schools Act is a tool to move the city's schools

         21  in just that direction.  It starts from what is

         22  already a good policy in New York City's schools and

         23  adds principal training, student training, reporting

         24  and other measures that will make that policy live

         25  and breathe.
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          2                 As a lesbian and gay organization, we

          3  hasten to point out that harassment based on sexual

          4  orientation and gender identity and expression must

          5  be specified in any anti- bullying measures adopted

          6  by the city.  This is not because others types of

          7  harassment are less severe, but because educators

          8  often turn a blind eye to anti- gay harassment more

          9  than they do to any other type of abuse.  Most

         10  coaches wouldn't tolerate a racial slur in the

         11  locker room or on the playing field.  But some

         12  coaches probably still call student athletes "sissy"

         13  or "fag" as a motivational tool and don't object

         14  when students use such language.

         15                 One would hope this behavior is less

         16  prevalent in classrooms, but the truth is that in a

         17  third of the cases when a student hears an anti- gay

         18  comment, it comes from an adult school staff member.

         19                 Even sympathetic teachers who want to

         20  step in and stop homophobic harassment are afraid to

         21  do so for fear of being labeled gay or lesbian

         22  themselves, which can still have professional

         23  repercussions whether or not those suspicions are

         24  true.  It's often easier for a teacher to look the

         25  other way or pretend not to hear a homophobic remark
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          2  than risk being accused of pushing a "gay agenda.".

          3                 For those who would call a

          4  prohibition on anti- gay harassment a granting of

          5  special rights, please know that most students who

          6  are called "fag" in school are heterosexual.  It is

          7  simply the best way that a bully can demean another

          8  student.  In fact, according to the Committee for

          9  Children, violence against straight youth perceived

         10  to be gay increased by 36 percent in 1998 alone.

         11  Anti- gay harassment affects the total environment

         12  of a school, and in some cases can have violent

         13  results.  As reported by Education Week, the

         14  majority of school shooting incidents in 1997 and

         15  1998 involved anti- gay harassment, even when the

         16  targets of that harassment were straight.

         17                 Again, the Pride Agenda commends the

         18  City Council for giving such serious attention to

         19  the important topic of bias harassment in schools.

         20

         21  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

         22  RICHARD N. GOTTFRIED

         23  ASSEMBLY MEMBER, 75th DISTRICT

         24

         25                 My name is Richard N. Gottfried.  I
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          2  represent the 75th Assembly District in Manhattan,

          3  which includes the neighborhoods of Clinton,

          4  Chelsea, Midtown, part of the Upper West Side and

          5  Murray Hill.

          6                 I appreciate this opportunity to

          7  comment on Intro. 418, the Dignity in All Schools

          8  Act.  I regret that, because of the special Assembly

          9  session, I am unable to appear today in person.

         10                 I would like to thank the Chair of

         11  the Education Committee, Councilmember Eva Moskowitz

         12  for holding this public hearing to consider how best

         13  to protect children in the New York City school

         14  system.

         15                 Intro. 418 would amend the

         16  administrative code of the city of New York in

         17  relation to prohibiting acts of harassment at

         18  schools.  It would require the Chancellor of the

         19  schools to create policies to foster a school

         20  environment free of harassment and require schools

         21  to provide presentations on harassment and conduct

         22  to its students and staff, as well as requiring

         23  schools to report incidents of harassment.

         24                 Keeping our children safe from

         25  harassment and violence should be every New Yorker's
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          2  top priority.  It is unacceptable that some children

          3  are faced with a decision between safety and

          4  education, because of their actual or perceived

          5  race, color, national origin, ethnic group,

          6  religion, religious practice, disability, sexual

          7  orientation, gender, sex, family composition or

          8  circumstance, economic circumstance, physical

          9  appearance, mannerisms, bearing, school performance

         10  or any other characteristic or reason that may not

         11  be apparent.  But that is the unfortunate reality.

         12                 As elected officials, we have a

         13  responsibility to protect young people from

         14  bullying, taunting, and intimidation at the expense

         15  of an education.  This bill would do just that.

         16                 Tragic outbreaks of violence in

         17  schools in recent years have underscored the need to

         18  protect youngsters from harassment.

         19                 In a recent study, the National

         20  Threat Assessment Center- a part of the Secret

         21  Service- found that in more than two thirds of 37

         22  school shootings reviewed, the perpetrators felt

         23   "persecuted, bullied, threatened, attacked or

         24  injured."

         25                 As a co- sponsor of the State
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          2  Assembly's Dignity for All Students Act, I strongly

          3  urge the City Council to pass Intro. 418 and ensure

          4  what all parents want in their child's school:

          5  Excellent academics and a safe environment that

          6  allows young people to perform to their full

          7  potential.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 1:05 p.m.)
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